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Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

You should carefully review the information contained in this Quarterly Report, but should particularly consider any risk factors that we set forth in this Quarterly Report and in
other reports or documents that we file from time to time with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). In this Quarterly Report, in addition to historical information,
we state our future strategies, plans, objectives or goals and our beliefs of future events and of our future operating results, financial position and cash flows. In some cases,
you can identify these so-called “forward-looking statements” by words such as “may,” “will,” “should,” “expects,” “plans,” “anticipates,” “believes,” “estimates,” “predicts,”
“potential,” “project,” or “continue” or the negative of these words and other comparable words. All forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties
and other important factors that may cause our actual results, performance, achievements, plans and objectives to differ materially from any future results, performance,
achievements, plans and objectives expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements. In evaluating these statements, you should specifically consider various
factors, including those identified under “Risk Factors” in Item 1A of our December 31, 2008 annual report on Form 10-K. Those factors may cause our actual results to differ
materially from any of our forward-looking statements. For these forward looking statements, we claim the protection of the safe harbor for forward-looking statements
provided by the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.

You should not place undue reliance on any such forward-looking statements. Further, any forward-looking statement, and the related risks, uncertainties and other factors
speak only as of the date on which they were originally made and we expressly disclaim any obligation or undertaking to update or revise any forward-looking statement to
reflect any change in our expectations with regard to these statements or any other change in events, conditions or circumstances on which any such statement is based.
New factors emerge from time to time, and it is not possible for us to predict what factors will arise or when. In addition, we cannot assess the impact of each factor on our
business or the extent to which any factor, or combination of factors, may cause actual results to differ materially from those contained in any forward-looking statements.




PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL COMMUNICATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Unaudited)

(Amounts in thousands) September 30, December 31,
ASSETS 2009 2008
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 22,503 29,904
Receivables 133,405 113,136
Less allowance for doubtful receivables 5,757 2,582
Net receivables 127,648 110,554
Deferred income taxes 13,847 7,843
Inventories 8,111 7,085
Prepaid expenses 5,046 5,960
Investment securities 905 1,563
Other current assets 4,411 647
Total current assets 182,471 163,556
Property and equipment in service, net of depreciation 815,450 793,051
Construction in progress 30,026 54,098
Net property and equipment 845,476 847,149
Cable certificates 191,565 191,565
Goodwill 68,586 66,868
Wireless licenses 25,967 25,967
Other intangible assets, net of amortization 19,135 22,976
Deferred loan and senior notes costs, net of amortization 5,561 6,496
Other assets 20,413 10,724
Total other assets 331,227 324,596
Total assets $ 1,359,174 1,335,301

See accompanying notes to interim consolidated financial statements.

(Continued)
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GENERAL COMMUNICATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Unaudited)

(Continued)

(Amounts in thousands) September 30, December 31,
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY 2009 2008
Current liabilities:
Current maturities of obligations under long-term debt and capital leases $ 13,215 12,857
Accounts payable 29,743 40,497
Deferred revenue 22,021 22,095
Accrued payroll and payroll related obligations 20,287 22,632
Accrued liabilities 10,203 11,043
Accrued interest 2,973 10,224
Subscriber deposits 1,607 1,262
Total current liabilities 99,949 120,610
Long-term debt 732,336 708,406
Obligations under capital leases, excluding current maturities 90,499 94,029
Obligation under capital lease due to related party, excluding current maturity 1,874 1,868
Deferred income taxes 98,713 86,187
Long-term deferred revenue 50,017 49,998
Other liabilities 16,940 15,288
Total liabilities 1,090,328 1,076,386
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock (no par):
Class A. Authorized 100,000 shares; issued 51,889 and 50,062 shares at September 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008,
respectively; outstanding 51,615 and 49,593 shares at September 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively 150,885 151,262
Class B. Authorized 10,000 shares; issued 3,189 and 3,203 shares at September 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008,
respectively; outstanding 3,189 and 3,201 shares at September 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively; convertible on
a share-per-share basis into Class A common stock 2,687 2,706
Less cost of 274 and 469 Class A and Class B common shares held in treasury at September 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008,
respectively (2,349) (2,462)
Paid-in capital 29,234 27,233
Retained earnings 88,389 80,176
Total stockholders’ equity 268,846 258,915
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 1,359,174 1,335,301

See accompanying notes to interim consolidated financial statements.




GENERAL COMMUNICATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
(Amounts in thousands, except per share amounts) 2009 2008 2009 2008
Revenues $ 150,816 151,660 448,301 428,795
Cost of goods sold (exclusive of depreciation and amortization shown separately below) 50,167 50,401 145,372 154,160
Selling, general and administrative expenses 49,045 56,410 157,350 151,076
Depreciation and amortization expense 30,874 28,869 92,778 83,820
20,730 15,980 52,801 39,739

Operating income ,

Other income (expense):

Interest expense (including amortization of deferred loan fees) (13,176) (14,134) (39,096) (34,820)
Interest income 49 386 68 869
Other expense, net (13,127) (13,748) (39,028) (33,951)
Income before income tax expense 7,603 2,232 13,773 5,788
Income tax expense 3,267 1,548 6,519 4,758
Net income 4,336 684 7,254 1,030

Net (income) loss attributable to the non-controlling interest --- (419) --- 1,503
Net income attributable to General Communication, Inc. $ 4,336 265 7,254 2,533

Basic net income per common share $ 0.08 0.01 0.14 0.05
Diluted net income per common share $ 0.08 0.00 0.13 0.05

See accompanying notes to interim consolidated financial statements.




GENERAL COMMUNICATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 AND 2008
(Unaudited)

(Amounts in thousands)
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities (net of effects of acquisitions):
Depreciation and amortization expense
Deferred income tax expense
Share-based compensation expense
Other noncash income and expense items
Change in operating assets and liabilities, net of effect of acquisition
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment
Proceeds from sale of marketable securities
Purchase of marketable securities
Purchase of business, net of cash received
Purchases of other assets and intangible assets
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:

Borrowing on Senior Credit Facility

Repayment of debt and capital lease obligations

Proceeds from common stock issuance

Issuance of long-term debt

Payment of debt issuance costs

Other
Net cash provided by financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

See accompanying notes to interim consolidated financial statements.

2009 2008
7,254 1,030
92,778 83,820
6,519 3,426
1,897 5,547
6,850 6,720
(48,046) 32,193
67,252 132,736
(92,989) (172,572)
613 1,226
(305) (879)
(108) (64,945)
(2,513) (5,115)
(95,302) (242,285)
30,000 132,100
(9,516) (3,996)
399 327
2,161
(1,662)
(234) (47)
20,649 128,883
(7,401) 19,334
29,904 13,074
22,503 32,408




GENERAL COMMUNICATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Interim Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

The accompanying unaudited interim consolidated financial statements include the accounts of General Communication, Inc. (“GCI”) and its subsidiaries and have been
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("GAAP") for interim financial information. Accordingly, they do not
include all of the information and footnotes required by GAAP for complete financial statements. They should be read in conjunction with our audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2008, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) on March 23, 2009 as part of our annual report on Form 10-
K. In the opinion of management, all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring accruals) considered necessary for a fair presentation have been included. The results of
operations for interim periods are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for an entire year or any other period.

() Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Principles
In the following discussion, GCI and its direct and indirect subsidiaries are referred to as “we,” “us” and “our.”

(@) Business
GCl, an Alaska corporation, was incorporated in 1979. We offer the following services:
Origination and termination of traffic in Alaska for certain common carriers,
Cable television services throughout Alaska,
Competitive local access services throughout Alaska.
Incumbent local access services in rural Alaska,
Long-distance telephone service between Alaska and the remaining United States and foreign countries,
Sale of postpaid and prepaid wireless telephone services and sale of wireless telephone handsets and accessories,
Data network services,
Internet access services,
Wireless roaming for certain wireless carriers,
Broadband services, including our SchoolAccess @ offering to rural school districts, our ConnectMD @ offering to rural hospitals and health clinics, and
managed video conferencing,
Managed services to certain commercial customers,
Sales and service of dedicated communications systems and related equipment,
Lease, service arrangements and maintenance of capacity on our fiber optic cable systems used in the transmission of interstate and intrastate data,
switched message long-distance and Internet services within Alaska and between Alaska and the remaining United States and foreign countries, and
Distribution of white and yellow pages directories to residential and business customers in certain markets we serve and on-line directory products.

(b) Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the consolidated accounts of GCI and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, as well as a variable interest entity in which
we were the primary beneficiary prior to August 18, 2008 when we acquired the remaining 18.1% equity interest and voting control of Alaska DigiTel. All
significant intercompany transactions between non-regulated affiliates of our company are eliminated. Intercompany revenue and expenses generated between
regulated and non-regulated affiliates of the company are not eliminated in consolidation

(c) Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements
In June 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 105 “Generally Accepted Accounting
Principals” (formerly Statement of Financial Accounting Standard (“SFAS”) No. 168, “The FASB Accounting Standards Codification and the Hierarchy of Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles”). Topic 105 establishes the FASB Accounting Standards Codification (“Codification”) as the source of authoritative GAAP
recognized by the FASB and is to be applied by nongovernmental entities. Rules and interpretive releases of the

(Continuned)




GENERAL COMMUNICATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Interim Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

SEC under authority of federal securities laws are also sources of authoritative GAAP for SEC registrants. The Codification became effective for financial
statements issued for interim and annual periods ending after September 15, 2009. The adoption of the Codification impacted our financial statement disclosures
beginning in the quarter ended September 30, 2009 as all references to authoritative accounting literature are referenced in accordance with the Codification. There
is no change to the content of our financial statements or disclosures as a result of implementing the Codification.

On January 1, 2009 we adopted ASC Topic 810-10-65-1, “Consolidation” (formerly SFAS No. 160, “Non-Controlling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements,
an Amendment of Accounting Research Bulletin (“ARB”) No. 51”). Topic 810-10-65-1 requires non-controlling interests to be treated as a separate component of
equity, but apart from the parent’s equity, and not as a liability or other item outside of equity. This topic also specifies that consolidated net income attributable to
the parent and to non-controlling interests be clearly identified and presented on the face of the consolidated statement of operations. Previously, we had reported
minority interests (non-controlling interests) as a reduction in arriving at income before income tax expense and cumulative effect of a change in accounting
principle. In addition, this standard specifies that changes to the parent’'s ownership interest while it retains a controlling financial interest should be accounted for
as equity transactions. This topic also expands disclosure in the financial statements to include a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of the equity
attributable to the parent and non-controlling owners and a schedule showing the effects of changes in a parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary on the equity
attributable to the parent. The presentation and disclosure requirements of this topic were applied retrospectively for all periods presented; as a result, our income
statements for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008 were recast to reflect the adoption of this topic.

In June 2008, the FASB issued ASC Topic 260-10-45-60 “Participating Securities and the Two-Class Method.” ASC Topic 260-10-45-61A requires companies to
treat unvested share-based payment awards that contain non-forfeitable rights to dividends or dividend equivalents as “participating securities” and include such
securities in the computation of earnings per share pursuant to the two-class method as described in ASC Topic 260, “Earnings Per Share” (formerly SFAS No.
128, “Earnings Per Share”). Topic 260-10-45-61A became effective on January 1, 2009 and required all prior period earnings per share data presented to be
adjusted retroactively. The adoption of Topic 260-10-45-61A effective January 1, 2009, did not have a material effect on our computation of earnings per

share. See note 1(h) regarding adoption of this topic.

(d) Recently Issued but Not Adopted Accounting Pronouncements
FASB Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2009-13 addresses the accounting for multiple-deliverable arrangements to enable vendors to account for products or

services (“deliverables”) separately rather than as a combined unit. Specifically, this guidance amends the criteria in Subtopic 605-25, “Revenue Recognition -
Multiple-Element Arrangements”, for separating consideration in multiple-

(Continuned)
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GENERAL COMMUNICATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Interim Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

deliverable arrangements. This guidance establishes a selling price hierarchy for determining the selling price of a deliverable, which is based on: (a) vendor-
specific objective evidence; (b) third-party evidence; or (c) estimates. This guidance also eliminates the residual method of allocation and requires that arrangement
consideration be allocated at the inception of the arrangement to all deliverables using the relative selling price method. In addition, this guidance significantly
expands required disclosures related to a vendor's multiple-deliverable revenue arrangements. ASU 2009-13 is effective prospectively for revenue arrangements
entered into or materially modified in fiscal years beginning on or after June 15, 2010. The adoption of ASU 2009-13 is not expected to have a material impact on
our income statement, financial position or cash flows.

In June 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 167, “Amendments to FASB Interpretation No. 46(R)” ("SFAS 167"). As of September 30, 2009, SFAS No. 167 has not
been incorporated within the FASB ASC. SFAS No. 167 amends previous accounting related to the consolidation of variable interest entities ("VIE") to require an
enterprise to qualitatively assess the determination of the primary beneficiary of a variable interest entity based on whether the entity (1) has the power to direct the
activities of a VIE that most significantly impact the entity’s economic performance and (2) has the obligation to absorb losses of the entity or the right to receive
benefits from the entity that could potentially be significant to the VIE. Also, SFAS No. 167 requires an ongoing reconsideration of the primary beneficiary, and
amends the events that trigger a reassessment of whether an entity is a VIE. Enhanced disclosures are also required to provide information about an enterprise’s
involvement in a VIE. This statement will be effective as of the beginning of each reporting entity’s first annual reporting period that begins after November 15,
2009, for interim periods within that first annual reporting period, and for interim and annual reporting periods thereafter. Earlier application is prohibited. We are
currently evaluating the impact of this new statement.

Goodwill
During the third quarter of 2009, we changed the date of our annual impairment test from the last day of the fiscal year to the last day of the tenth month of the fiscal
year. As we have grown, it has become increasingly difficult to complete the various impairment analyses in a timely manner, therefore, we believe the change in
accounting principle related to the annual testing date is preferable as it provides us additional time to complete the impairment test and report the results of that test il
our annual filing on Form 10-K. We believe that the proposed change to the annual testing date will not delay, accelerate or avoid an impairment charge. We believe
that this change in accounting principle is preferable under the circumstances and will not result in adjustments to our financial statements . The annual impairment te
was last performed as of December 31, 2008 and will be performed again as of October 31, 2009, therefore, less than 12 months will have elapsed since our last
impairment test.

Regulatory Accounting and Regulation
We account for our regulated operations in accordance with the accounting principles for regulated enterprises. This accounting recognizes the economic effects

of rate regulation by recording cost and a return on investment as such amounts are recovered through rates authorized by regulatory authorities. Accordingly,
plant and equipment is depreciated over lives approved by regulators and certain costs and obligations are deferred based upon approvals received from
regulators to permit recovery of such amounts in future years. Our cost studies and depreciation rates for our regulated operations are subject to periodic audits
that could result in reductions of revenues.

Revenue Recognition
As an Eligible Telecommunications Carrier ("ETC"), we receive subsidies from the Universal Service Fund ("USF") to support the provision of local access service in

high-cost areas. On May 1, 2008, the Federal Communications Commission ("FCC") issued an order adopting the recommendation of the Federal State Joint Board ¢
Universal Service (“Joint Board”) to impose a state-by-state interim cap on high cost funds to be distributed to competitive ETCs. As part of the revised policy, the FCt
adopted a limited exception from the cap for competitive ETCs serving tribal lands or Alaska Native regions. While the operation of the cap will generally reduce the h
cost fund amounts available to competitive ETCs as new competitive ETCs are designated and as existing competitive ETCs acquire new customers, providers like us
who serve tribal lands or Alaska Native regions were provided some relief. On March 5, 2009, the FCC issued an additional order waiving a previously adopted limitat
to the exception, the result of which is to provide uncapped support for all lines served by competitive ETCs for tribal lands or Alaska Native regions during the time the
interim cap is in effect. The uncapped support for tribal lands or Alaska Native regions and the cap for all other regions will be in place until the FCC takes action on
proposals for long term reform. In the first quarter of 2009, we recognized $1.9 million of voice and wireless revenue from the Universal Service Administrative Compz
(“USAC”) related to services provided from August 2008 to December 2008 due to the March 2009 FCC order that provides uncapped support for all lines served by
competitive ETCs for tribal lands or Alaska Native regions retroactive to August 2008. On April 8, 2009, the FCC issued a Notice of Inquiry to review aspects of its hig
cost support program. Comments were filed on May 8, 2009, and replies were filed on June 8, 2009. We cannot predict at this time the outcome of this proceeding ol
affect on high cost support available to us.

(Continuned)




GENERAL COMMUNICATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Interim Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

In the second quarter of 2009, we recognized $3.1 million of wireless revenue from the USAC for interstate common line support for a new local access area for which
we received ETC status in May 2009 of which $690,000 and $1.7 million were related to first quarter of 2009 and the year ended December 31, 2008,
respectively. Collectability was not reasonably assured until we were awarded ETC status, therefore, we deferred revenue recognition until such status was confirmec

In the third quarter of 2009, we recognized $1.1 million upon a change in our estimate of support to be received from the USAC for interstate common line
support. We accrue estimated program revenue quarterly and adjust our revenue as we obtain new information that changes the variables used to calculate our
estimate.

For a complete list of our revenue recognition policies, you should specifically refer to those identified under Part IV, Item 15, note 1(v) of our December 31, 2008
annual report on Form 10-K.

(h) Earnings per Common Share
We compute net income per share of Class A and Class B common stock using the “two class” method in accordance with ASC Topic 260-10-45-60. Therefore,

basic net income per share is computed by dividing net income applicable to common stockholders by the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during the year. Diluted net income per share is computed by dividing net income applicable to GCI by the weighted average number of common
and dilutive common equivalent shares outstanding during the period. The computation of the dilutive net income per share of Class A common stock assumes
the conversion of Class B common stock to Class A common stock, while the dilutive net income per share of Class B common stock does not assume the
conversion of those shares.

Undistributed earnings for each year are allocated based on the contractual participation rights of Class A and Class B common shares as if the earnings for the
year had been distributed. Considering the terms of our Articles of Incorporation which provide that, if and when dividends are declared on our common stock in
accordance with Alaska corporate law, equivalent dividends shall be paid with respect to the shares of Class A common stock and Class B common stock and
that both classes of common stock have identical dividend rights and would share equally in our net assets in the event of liquidation, we have allocated
undistributed earnings on a proportionate basis.

Earnings Per Share (“EPS”) is calculated utilizing the “two-class” method by dividing the sum of distributed earnings to common stockholders and undistributed
earnings allocated to common stockholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. In applying the “two-class” method,
undistributed earnings are allocated to both common shares and participating securities. Our restricted stock grants are entitled to dividends and meet the criteria of
a participating security. The adoption Topic 260-10-45-60 did not have a material impact on our calculation of earnings per share for the periods presented.

EPS and common shares used to calculate basic and diluted EPS consist of the following (amounts in thousands, except per share amounts):

Three Months Ended September 30,

2009 2008
Class A Class B Class A Class B
Basic net income per share:

Numerator:

Allocation of undistributed earnings attributable to GCl 4,077 259 248 17
Denominator:

Weighted average common shares outstanding 50,125 3,190 49,121 3,250
Basic net income per common share 0.08 0.08 0.01 0.01

(Continuned)




GENERAL COMMUNICATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Interim Consolidated Financial Statements

(Unaudited)

Diluted net income per share:

Numerator:

Allocation of undistributed earnings for basic computation

Reallocation of undistributed earnings as a result of conversion of Class B to Class A shares

Reallocation of undistributed earnings as a result of conversion of Class B to Class A shares
outstanding

Effect of share based compensation that may be settled in cash or shares

Net income adjusted for allocation of undistributed earnings and effect of share based
compensation that may be settled in cash or shares

Denominator:

Number of shares used in basic computation

Conversion of Class B to Class A common shares outstanding
Unexercised stock options

Unvested restricted stock awards

Effect of share based compensation that may be settled in cash or shares
Number of shares used in per share computations

Diluted net income per common share

Basic net income per share:
Numerator:
Allocation of undistributed earnings attributable to GCI

Denominator:
Weighted average common shares outstanding
Basic net income per common share

Diluted net income per share:
Numerator:
Allocation of undistributed earnings for basic computation
Reallocation of undistributed earnings as a result of conversion of Class B to Class A
shares
Reallocation of undistributed earnings as a result of conversion of Class B to Class A
shares outstanding
Effect of share based compensation that may be settled in cash or shares
Net income adjusted for allocation of undistributed earnings and effect of share based
compensation that may be settled in cash or shares

4,077 259 248 17
259 17 -
(5) ©)
(54) -—- -—-
4,282 254 265 16
50,125 3,190 49,121 3,250
3,190 3,250 -—-
273 934 -
- - 13 —
240 -—- -—-
53,828 3,190 53,318 3,250
0.08 0.08 0.00 0.00
Nine Months Ended September 30,
2009 2008
Class A Class B Class A Class B
6,816 438 2,376 157
49,705 3,197 49,064 3,253
0.14 0.14 0.05 0.05
6,816 438 2,376 157
438 157 -
(22) @
(296) -—- -—-
6,958 416 2,533 155
(Continuned)




GENERAL COMMUNICATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Interim Consolidated Financial Statements

(Unaudited)

Denominator:
Number of shares used in basic computation 49,705 3,197 49,064 3,253
Conversion of Class B to Class A common shares outstanding 3,197 3,253 -
Unexercised stock options 317 647 -
Unvested restricted stock awards - 22 -
Effect of share based compensation that may be settled in cash or shares 238 - -
Number of shares used in per share computations 53,457 3,197 52,986 3,253
Diluted net income per common share 0.13 0.13 0.05 0.05

Weighted average shares associated with outstanding share options and awards for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008, which have

been excluded from the computations of diluted EPS (shares, in thousands):

Three Months Ended

Nine Months Ended

September 30, September 30,
2009 2008 2009 2008
Shares associated with anti-dilutive unexercised stock options 3,961 3,191 4,738 3,731
Shares associated with anti-dilutive unvested restricted share awards 248 10
Share-based compensation that may be settled in cash or shares the effect
of which is anti-dilutive 291 133
Shares associated with unvested contingent options and awards for which
the contingency has not been met 426 376 418 376
(i) Common Stock
Following are the changes in issued common stock for the nine months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008 (shares, in thousands):
Class A Class B
Balances at December 31, 2007 50,437 3,257
Class B shares converted to Class A 10 (10)
Shares issued under stock option plan 52 -
Shares issued under the Director Compensation Plan 20 -
Shares retired (540) —
Other (5) —
Balances at September 30, 2008 49,974 3,247
(Continuned)




GENERAL COMMUNICATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Interim Consolidated Financial Statements

(Unaudited)
Balances at December 31, 2008 50,062 3,203
Class B shares converted to Class A 12 (12)
Shares issued under stock option plan 69 -
Share awards issued 1,965
Shares retired (219) (2)
Balances at September 30, 2009 51,889 3,189

We retired 219,000 and 2,000 shares of our Class A and Class B common stock, respectively, during the nine months ended September 30, 2009, that were
acquired to settle the minimum statutory tax-withholding requirements pursuant to restricted stock award vesting and the settlement of deferred compensation.

For discussion of the share awards issued during the nine months ended September 30, 2009 see note 5.

(i) Investment Securities
Investment securities were $905,000 and $1.6 million at September 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively, and are classified as trading securities. Our

investments consist primarily of money market funds and U.S. government securities. Trading securities are recorded at fair value with unrealized holding gains
and losses included in net income. During the nine months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008, the change in net unrealized holding gains/losses in the
trading portfolio included in earnings was a net loss of $12,000 and a net gain of $119,000, respectively.

(k) Asset Retirement Obligations
Following is a reconciliation of the beginning and ending aggregate carrying amount of our asset retirement obligations at September 30, 2009 and 2008 (amounts

in thousands):

Balance at December 31, 2007 $ 4,173
Liability incurred 644
Accretion expense for the nine months ended
September 30, 2008 123
Additions upon acquisition of United Ultilities Inc. (“UUI"), Unicom, Inc. (“Unicom”) , and Alaska Wireless, LLC (“Alaska Wireless”) 803
Liability settled (165)

Balance at September 30, 2008 $ 5,578

Balance at December 31, 2008 $ 6,179
Liability incurred 957
Accretion expense for the nine months ended
September 30, 2009 352
Liability settled (34)

Balance at September 30, 2009 $ 7,454

Our asset retirement obligations are included in Other Liabilities.

) Derivatives
We enter into derivative contracts to manage exposure to variability in cash flows from floating-rate financial instruments, particularly on our long-term debt
instruments and credit facilities. We do not apply hedge accounting to our derivative instruments and therefore treat these instruments as “economic
hedges.” Derivative instruments are accounted for at fair value as either assets or liabilities on
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the balance sheet. Changes in the fair value of derivatives are recognized in earnings each reporting period.

Derivative financial instruments are subject to credit risk and market risk. Credit risk is the failure of the counterparty to perform under the terms of the derivative
contract. We minimize the credit risk in derivative instruments by entering into transactions with high-quality counterparties.

Market risk is the adverse effect on the value of a derivative instrument that results from a change in interest rates or other market variables. The market risk
associated with interest-rate contracts is managed by establishing and monitoring parameters that limit the types and degree of market risk that may be
undertaken.

In the third quarter of 2008, we entered into two interest rate caps with a combined notional value of $180.0 million that mature on July 1, 2010. The initial cost of
the caps was $928,000. These derivative instruments are being used to manage the interest rate risk on our Senior Credit Facility, which is indexed to the
London Interbank Offered Rate ("LIBOR").

The following is a summary of the derivative contracts outstanding in the balance sheet at September 30, 2009 (dollar amounts in thousands):
Balance Sheet

Number of Contracts Notional Value Location Fair Value
Interest rate caps 2 $ 180,000 Other Assets $ 1

For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008, our derivative financial instruments had the following effect on our consolidated income
statements (amounts in thousands):

Amount of Gain (Loss) Recognized

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,
Derivatives not designated as hedging
instruments Location of Gain (Loss) Recognized 2009 2008 2009 2008
Interest rate caps Interest expense $ (8) (519) (6) (519)

(m) Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Significant items subject to estimates and assumptions include the allowance for doubtful receivables, unbilled revenues, accrual of the USF high-cost
area program subsidy, share-based compensation, reserve for future customer credits, valuation allowances for deferred income tax assets, depreciable and
amortizable lives of assets, the carrying value of long-lived assets including goodwill, cable certificates and wireless licenses, our effective tax rate, purchase
price allocations, the accrual of cost of goods sold exclusive of depreciation and amortization ("Cost of Goods Sold"), asset retirement obligations, and the accrual
of contingencies and litigation. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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(n) Classification of Taxes Collected from Customers
We report sales, use, excise, and value added taxes assessed by a governmental authority that is directly imposed on a revenue-producing transaction between us
and a customer on a net basis in our income statement. Following are certain surcharges on a gross basis in our income statement for the three and nine months
ended September 30, 2009 and 2008 (amounts in thousands):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2009 2008 2009 2008
Surcharges reported gross $ 1,241 1,070 3,224 3,081

(o) Reclassifications
Reclassifications have been made to the 2008 financial statements to make them comparable with the 2009 presentation.

(2) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows Supplemental Disclosures

Change in operating assets and liabilities, net of effect of acquisitions, consists of (amounts in thousands):

Nine month period ended September 30, 2009 2008
Increase in accounts receivable $ (19,695) (3,014)
Decrease in prepaid expenses 1,288 1,026
Increase in inventories (960) (1,759)
Increase in other current assets (3,874) (118)
Increase in other assets (11,251) -
Decrease in accounts payable (2,261) (1,484)
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenues (170) 3,668
Increase (decrease) in accrued payroll and payroll related obligations (2,471) 1,191
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities (840) 3,209
Decrease in accrued interest (7,251) (6,021)
Increase (decrease) in subscriber deposits 245 (35)
Increase (decrease) in long-term deferred revenue (1,562) 36,272
Increase (decrease) in components of other long-term liabilities 756 (742)

$ (48,046) 32,193

We paid interest, exclusive of capitalized interest, totaling $45.0 million and $39.2 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

We paid $9,000 and $884,000 for income taxes during the nine months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively. We received $911,000 and $0 in income tax
refunds during the nine months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008, we capitalized interest of $582,000 and $3.5 million, respectively.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008, we had $957,000 and $644,000, respectively, in non-cash additions to property and equipment for assets
added when recording asset retirement obligations.
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During the nine months ended September 30, 2009, we applied $465,000 of a warranty receivable to offset our cash obligation relating to a capital lease.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2009, we had a $1.6 million non-cash increase to goodwill to record an adjustment for deferred revenue to the United
Utilities, Inc. ("UUI") and Unicom, Inc. ("Unicom") purchase price allocations.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2008, we financed $98.6 million for the use of satellite transponders through a capital lease obligation. We also
financed $1.3 million in capital expenditures through the extension of a previously existing capital lease.

In May 2008, we received net cash of $110.6 million from a $145.0 million term loan that we obtained. We used $30.0 million of the term loan to repay the revolver
portion of our Senior Credit Facility and our loan proceeds were reduced by $2.9 million for an original issue discount and $1.6 million for bank and legal fees
associated with the new term loan. Additionally, during the nine months ended September 30, 2008 we borrowed $20.0 million on the revolver portion of our Senior
Credit Facility.

In June 2008 the Galaxy XR satellite was taken out of service resulting in the removal of the remaining $8.8 million net book value and the recognition of an $8.8 million
warranty receivable. We applied $4.8 million of the warranty receivable to offset our interest expense obligation of our capital lease and to reduce the principle amount of
the capital lease with the same party during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008, resulting in an outstanding warranty receivable of $4.0 million as of
September 30, 2008.

We had $4.0 million and $15.1 million in non-cash additions to property and equipment due to unpaid purchases as of September 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

We retired Class A common stock in the amount of $1.2 million and $5.5 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively. The Class
A common stock retired in the nine months ended September 30, 2009, was acquired to settle the minimum statutory tax-withholding requirements pursuant to
restricted stock awards vesting and the settlement of deferred compensation.

(3) Intangible Assets
Gooduwill increased $1.7 million at September 30, 2009 as compared to December 31, 2008, primarily to record an adjustment for deferred revenue to the UUI and

Unicom purchase price allocations.

Amortization expense for amortizable intangible assets was as follows (amounts in thousands):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2009 2008 2009 2008
Amortization expense $ 1,939 1,749 5,709 3,829

Amortization expense for amortizable intangible assets for each of the five succeeding fiscal years is estimated to be (amounts in thousands):

Years Ending December 31,

2009 $ 7,666
2010 5,845
2011 3,777
2012 2,829
2013 1,553
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For the period from January 1, 2009 to September 30, 2009, the U.S. economy has been experiencing the effects of a recession. Should economic conditions in the
State of Alaska and other indicators deteriorate such that they impact our ability to achieve levels of forecasted operating results and cash flows, should our stock price
and market capitalization decline below our book value for a sustained period of time, or should other events occur indicating the carrying value of goodwill and
intangible assets might be impaired, we would test our goodwill and intangible assets for impairment at that time and may recognize an impairment loss to the extent
that the carrying amount exceeds such asset's fair value. Any future impairment charges could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations.

(4) FEinancial Instruments

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

On June 30, 2009, we adopted ASC Topic 825 Subtopic 10 Section 65 paragraph 65-1, “Financial Instruments,” which describes the transition related to interim
disclosures about fair value of financial instruments. Under this guidance, entities are required to disclose the fair value of all financial instruments within the scope of
Topic 825 in all interim financial statements. Paragraph 65-1 also requires disclosure of the method(s) and significant assumptions used to estimate the fair value of those
financial instruments. The fair value of a financial instrument is the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties.
At September 30, 2009 and 2008 the fair values of cash and cash equivalents, net receivables, current portion of notes receivable, accounts payable, accrued payroll and
payroll related obligations, accrued interest, accrued liabilities, and subscriber deposits approximate their carrying value due to the short-term nature of these financial
instruments. The carrying amounts and estimated fair values of our financial instruments at September 30, 2009 and 2008 are as follows (amounts in thousands):

2009 2008
Carrying Amount Fair Value Carrying Amount Fair Value
Current and long-term debt and capital lease obligations $ 837,924 790,408 814,199 730,689
Other liabilities 65,709 65,466 51,132 50,936

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate fair values:

Current and long-term debt and capital lease obligations: The fair value of our Senior Notes is estimated based on the quoted market price for the same issue.

The fair value of our Senior Credit Facility is estimated to approximate the carrying value because these instruments are subject to variable interest rates. The fair
value of the CoBank Mortgage Note Payable is valued at the discounted amount of future cash flows using our current incremental rate of borrowing on our Senior
Credit Facility. The fair value of the Rural Utilities Services Debt is valued at the discounted amount of future cash flows using a treasury rate that corresponds to
the remaining term of the loan. The fair value of our capital leases and capital lease due to related party are estimated based upon the discounted amount of future
cash flows using our current incremental rate of borrowing on our Senior Credit Facility.

Other Liabilities: Deferred compensation liabilities have no defined maturity dates, therefore the fair value is the amount payable on demand as of the balance
sheet date. Asset retirement obligations are recorded at their fair value and, over time, the liability is accreted to its present value each period. Lease escalation
liabilities are valued at the discounted amount of future cash flows using the Senior Credit Facility interest rate at September 30, 2009. Our non-employee share-
based compensation awards are reported at their fair value at each reporting period.
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Fair Value Measurements

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures under ASC Topic 820 “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures” establishes a three-tiered fair value hierarchy that
prioritizes inputs to valuation techniques used in fair value calculations. Level 1 inputs, the highest priority, are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities. Level 2 inputs reflect other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are either observable directly or through corroboration with observable market data. Level
3 inputs are unobservable inputs, due to little or no market activity for the asset or liability, such as internally-developed valuation models. We have applied the provisions
of Topic 820 to our trading securities, the assets of our deferred compensation plan (primarily money market funds and mutual funds) and interest rate caps.

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of September 30, 2009 were as follows (amounts in thousands):

Fair Value Measurement at Reporting Date Using
Quoted Prices in Active

Markets Significant Other Significant Unobservable
Balance as of September 30, for Identical Observable Inputs
Description 2009 Assets (Level 1) Inputs (Level 2) (Level 3)

Trading securities:

Money market funds $ 7 7 —

U.S. treasury notes 423 423 - —

U.S. government securities 475 475 -— —
Deferred compensation plan assets (money market

funds) 1,451 1,451
Derivative financial instruments 1 - 1 -
Total assets at fair value $ 2,357 2,356 1 -

(@)

The valuation of our marketable securities, money market funds, and mutual funds are determined using quoted market prices in active markets utilizing market
observable inputs. Derivative financial instruments are valued using mid-market quotations in active markets that are based on actual bid/ask quotations shown on
reliable electronic information screens as of September 30, 2009.

Share-Based Compensation

Our 1986 Stock Option Plan ("Stock Option Plan"), as amended, provides for the grant of options and restricted stock awards (collectively "awards") for a maximum of
15.7 million shares of GCI Class A common stock, subject to adjustment upon the occurrence of stock dividends, stock splits, mergers, consolidations or certain other
changes in corporate structure or capitalization. If an award expires or terminates, the shares subject to the award will be available for further grants of awards under
the Stock Option Plan. The Compensation Committee of GCI's Board of Directors administers the Stock Option Plan. Substantially all restricted stock awards granted
vest over periods of up to three years. Substantially all options vest in equal installments over a period of five years and expire ten years from the date of
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grant. Options granted pursuant to the Stock Option Plan are only exercisable if at the time of exercise the option holder is our employee, non-employee director, or a
consultant or advisor working on our behalf. New shares are issued when stock option agreements are exercised and restricted stock awards are made.

The fair value of restricted stock awards is determined based on the quoted price of our common stock. We use a Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model to
estimate the fair value of stock options issued. The Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model incorporates various and highly subjective assumptions, including
expected term and expected volatility. We have reviewed our historical pattern of option exercises and have determined that meaningful differences in option exercise
activity existed among employee job categories. Therefore, for all stock options, we have categorized these awards into two groups for valuation purposes.

On August 6, 2009, we filed a Tender Offer Statement on Schedule TO (the “Exchange Offer”) with the SEC. The Exchange Offer was an offer by us to eligible officers,
employees and stakeholders, other than officers of GCI who also serve on our Board of Directors (“Participants”) to exchange, on a grant-by-grant basis, their outstanding
eligible stock options that were granted under our Stock Option Plan, whether vested or unvested, for shares of restricted stock of GCI Class A common stock that we
granted under the Stock Option Plan (“Restricted Stock”). Generally, eligible options included all options issued pursuant to the Stock Option Plan between January 1,
1999, and February 15, 2009, excluding any options that vest based on EBITDA performance (“Eligible Options”). We accepted for cancellation, Eligible Options to
purchase 5,241,700 shares of GCI Class A common stock from 166 Participants, representing approximately 86% of the options eligible for exchange in the offer with a
fair value of $6.2 million as of the date of the exchange. We issued 1,908,890 shares of Restricted Stock to Participants, with a fair value of $7.1 million as of the date of
the exchange, in each case, in accordance with the terms of the Exchange Offer.

In accordance with the terms of the Restricted Stock agreement, one-half of the Restricted Stock received in exchange for eligible options will vest on December 20, 2011
with the remainder vesting on February 28, 2012. The number of shares of Restricted Stock that were offered in exchange for each eligible option was equal to the lesser
of (i) a number of shares of Restricted Stock having a fair value equal to 100% of the fair value of the eligible options exchanged for shares of Restricted Stock, or (ii) a
number of shares of Restricted Stock equal to 40% of the number of shares issuable pursuant to the eligible options surrendered.

The exchange of stock options for Restricted Stock was treated as a modification of the stock options. The remaining unamortized stock compensation expense related
to the original options will continue to be amortized over the vesting period of the Restricted Stock. The compensation expense for the incremental difference between
the fair value of the Restricted Stock and the fair value of the original options on the date of modification, reflecting the current facts and circumstances on the modification
date, will be amortized over the vesting period of the Restricted Stock. We estimate the incremental stock-based compensation expense related to the modification, net
of estimated forfeitures, will be approximately $940,000, of which $122,000 is expected to be expensed in the year ending December 31, 2009.

The weighted average grant date fair value of options granted during the nine months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008 was $3.49 per share and $3.08 per share,
respectively. The total fair value of options vesting during the nine months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008 was $103,000 and $2.6 million, respectively.

We have recorded share-based compensation expense of $1.9 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2009, which consists of $4.5 million for employee
share-based compensation expense, a $2.1 million decrease to shared-based compensation expense associated with performance based stock options and restricted
stock awards that are no longer expected to vest, and a $502,000 decrease in the fair value of liability-classified awards. We recorded share-based compensation
expense of $5.5 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2008, which consists of $5.4 million for employee share-based
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compensation expense and a $101,000 increase in the fair value of liability-classified awards. Share-based compensation expense is classified as selling, general and
administrative expense in our consolidated income statements. Unrecognized share-based compensation expense was $8.6 million relating to 2.2 million restricted
stock awards and $898,000 relating to 582,000 unvested stock options as of September 30, 2009. We expect to recognize share-based compensation expense over a
weighted average period of 1.9 years for stock options and 2.2 years for restricted stock awards.

The following is a summary of our Stock Option Plan activity for the nine months ended September 30, 2009:

Weighted
Shares Average
(in thousands) Exercise Price
Outstanding options and restricted stock awards at December 31, 2008 7,205 $ 9.08
Options granted 153  § 6.65
Restricted stock awards granted 1,941  § 4.44
Options exercised 69) $ 5.76
Restricted stock awards vested (128) $ 11.23
Options forfeited and retired (5,257) $ 9.35
Outstanding options and restricted stock awards at September 30, 2009 3845 ¢ 6.29
Available for grant at September 30, 2009 4,113

In January 2001 we entered into an aircraft operating lease agreement with a company owned by our President and CEO. The lease was amended effective January 1,
2002 and February 25, 2005. Upon signing the lease, the lessor was granted an option to purchase 250,000 shares of GCI Class A common stock at $6.50 per share
that was not issued pursuant to the Stock Option Plan. 150,000 shares remain available for purchase with a weighted average exercise price of $6.50 per share and
expire on March 31, 2010. We paid $675,000 in connection with this agreement during the nine months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008.

The total intrinsic values, determined as of the date of exercise, of options exercised during the nine months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008 were $96,000 and

$155,000, respectively. We received $399,000 and $327,000 in cash from stock option exercises during the nine months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008,
respectively.

(6) Industry Segments Data
Our reportable segments are business units that offer different products and are each managed separately.

A description of our five reportable segments follows:
Consumer - We offer a full range of voice, video, data and wireless services to residential customers.
Network Access - We offer a full range of voice, data and wireless services to common carrier customers.
Commercial - We offer a full range of voice, video, data and wireless services to business and governmental customers.
(Continuned)
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Managed Broadband - We offer data services to rural school districts and rural hospitals and health clinics through our SchoolAccess ® and ConnectMD @ initiatives
and managed video conferencing.

Regulated Operations - We offer voice, data and wireless services to residential, business, governmental, and common carrier customers in areas of rural Alaska.

Corporate related expenses including engineering, information technology, accounting, legal and regulatory, human resources, and other general and administrative
expenses for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008 are allocated to our segments using segment margin for the years ended December 31,
2008 and 2007, respectively. Bad debt expense for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008 is allocated to our segments using a combination of
specific identification and allocations based upon segment revenue for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

We evaluate performance and allocate resources based on earnings before depreciation and amortization expense, net interest expense, income tax expense, share-
based compensation expense, and non-cash contribution adjustment (“adjusted EBITDA”). The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as those
described in the summary of significant accounting policies in note 1 in the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” included in Part Il of our December 31, 2008
annual report on Form 10-K. Intersegment sales are recorded at cost plus an agreed upon intercompany profit.

We earn all revenues through sales of services and products within the United States. All of our long-lived assets are located within the United States of America, except
approximately 82% of our undersea fiber optic cable systems which transit international waters and all of our satellite transponders.

Summarized financial information for our reportable segments for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008 follows (amounts in thousands):

Managed Regulated Total Reportable
Three months ended September 30, Consumer Network Access Commercial Broadband Operations Segments
2009
Revenues:
Intersegment - 76 1,371 - 50 1,497
External 75,021 30,263 27,780 11,715 6,037 150,816
Total revenues 75,021 30,339 29,151 11,715 6,087 152,313
Adjusted EBITDA 23,234 14,084 6,154 5,501 1,299 50,272
2008
Revenues:
Intersegment 33 336 1,428 -—- -—- 1,797
External 66,485 38,778 30,166 10,293 5,938 151,660
Total revenues 66,518 39,114 31,594 10,293 5,938 153,457
Adjusted EBITDA 18,275 17,869 6,045 4,255 1,320 47,764
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Managed Regulated Total Reportable
Nine months ended September 30, Consumer Network Access Commercial Broadband Operations Segments
2009
Revenues:
Intersegment $ - 459 4,309 - 154 4,922
External 219,139 94,582 82,683 33,323 18,574 448,301
Total revenues $ 219,139 95,041 86,992 33,323 18,728 453,223
Adjusted EBITDA $ 64,304 46,674 17,047 14,777 5,154 147,956
2008
Revenues:
Intersegment $ 50 804 4,346 - 116 5,316
External 189,981 119,843 84,201 26,953 7,817 428,795
Total revenues $ 190,031 120,647 88,547 26,953 7,933 434,111
Adjusted EBITDA $ 43,952 59,682 16,066 9,870 1,679 131,249

A reconciliation of reportable segment revenues to consolidated revenues follows (amounts in thousands):

Three Months Ended

Nine Months Ended

September 30, September 30,
2009 2008 2009 2008
Reportable segment revenues $ 152,313 153,457 453,223 434,111
Less intersegment revenues eliminated in consolidation 1,497 1,797 4,922 5,316
Consolidated revenues $ 150,816 151,660 448,301 428,795
A reconciliation of reportable segment earnings from adjusted EBITDA to consolidated income before income tax expense follows (amounts in thousands):
Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2009 2008 2009 2008
Reportable segment adjusted EBITDA $ 50,272 47,764 147,956 131,249
Less depreciation and amortization expense 30,874 28,869 92,778 83,820
Less (plus) share-based compensation expense (1,332) 2,694 1,897 5,547
Less non-cash contribution adjustment 640 480 640
(Less net income) plus net loss attributable to non-controlling interest -—- (419) -—- 1,503
Consolidated operating income 20,730 15,980 52,801 39,739
Less other expense, net 13,127 13,748 39,028 33,951
Consolidated income before income tax expense $ 7,603 2,232 13,773 5,788

(7) Commitments and Contingencies

Litigation, Disputes, and Regulatory Matters

We are involved in various lawsuits, billing disputes, legal proceedings, and regulatory matters that have arisen from time to time in the normal course of business. In the

opinion of management, the
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nature and disposition of these matters are considered routine and arising in the ordinary course of business.

In the third quarter of 2008, Alaska DigiTel, LLC (“Alaska DigiTel”) received a request for documents pursuant to a notification of investigation from the FCC'’s Office of the
Inspector General in connection with its review of Alaska DigiTel’s compliance with program rules and requirements under certain USF programs. The request covers the
period beginning January 1, 2004 through August 31, 2008, and relates to amounts received by Alaska DigiTel and its affiliates during that period. Alaska DigiTel was an
Alaska based wireless communications company of which we acquired an 81.9% equity interest on January 2, 2007 and the remaining 18.1% equity interest on August 18,
2008 and was subsequently dissolved in April 2009. Prior to August 18, 2008, our control over the operations of Alaska DigiTel was limited as required by the FCC upon
its approval of our initial acquisition completed in January 2007. We have been and intend to continue fully complying with this request on behalf of Alaska DigiTel and the
GClI companies as affiliates. This request has not had a material impact on our income statement, financial position or cash flows but given the preliminary nature of this
request we are unable to assess the ultimate resolution of this matter.

Alaska Communications Systems (“ACS”) Access Service Pricing

On May 22, 2006, the ACS subsidiary serving Anchorage filed a petition with the FCC, seeking forbearance from regulation of interstate broadband and access services.

On August 20, 2007, the FCC granted in part and denied in part the requested relief, requiring that ACS comply with certain safeguards to ensure the relief granted would
not result in harm to consumers or competition. On October 22, 2008, ACS filed a petition to convert to price cap regulation the access services it provides in each of its

operating areas. The petition was granted on April 17, 2009, rescinding the forbearance relief previously granted. The new ACS rates have reduced the cost of switched
access services provided to us by ACS.

Universal Service

The USF pays subsidies to ETCs to support the provision of local service in high-cost areas. Under FCC regulations, we have qualified as a competitive ETC in the
Anchorage, Fairbanks, Juneau, Matanuska Telephone Association (“MTA”), Mukluk, Ketchikan, Fort Wainwright/Eielson, Interior Telephone Company, Glacier State,
Arctic Slope Telephone Association Cooperative, Copper Valley, Kotzebue, Adak, UUI, United KUC, and Cordova study areas. In addition, we have been granted
conditional ETC status for the Nushagak study area, contingent on execution of an interconnection agreement with the ILEC. Without ETC status, we would not qualify
for USF subsidies in these areas or other rural areas where we propose to offer wireline and wireless local services, and our revenue for providing local services in these
areas would be materially adversely affected.

On May 1, 2008, the FCC issued an order adopting the recommendation of the Joint Board to impose a state-by-state interim cap on high cost funds to be distributed to
competitive ETCs. As part of the revised policy, the FCC adopted a limited exception from the cap for competitive ETCs serving tribal lands or Alaska Native

regions. While the operation of the cap will generally reduce the high cost fund amounts available to competitive ETCs as new competitive ETCs are designated and as
existing competitive ETCs acquire new customers, providers like us who serve tribal lands or Alaska Native regions were provided some relief. On March 5, 2009, the
FCC issued an additional order waiving a previously adopted limitation to the exception, the result of which is to provide uncapped support for all lines served by
competitive ETCs for tribal lands or Alaska Native regions during the time the interim cap is in effect. The uncapped support for tribal lands or Alaska Native regions and
the cap for all other regions will be in place until the FCC takes action on proposals for long term reform. On April 8, 2009, the FCC issued a Notice of Inquiry to

review aspects of its high cost support program. Comments were filed on May 8, 2009, and replies were filed on June 8, 2009. We cannot predict at this time the
outcome of this proceeding or its affect on high cost support available to us.
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Dobson Resale Agreement

AT&T Mobility, LLC (“AT&T Mobility”) acquired Dobson Communications Corporation (“Dobson”), including its Alaska properties, on November 15, 2007. In December
2007 we signed an agreement with AT&T Mobility that provided for an orderly transition of our wireless customers from the Dobson/AT&T network in Alaska to our
wireless facilities that we began building in 2008 and are expected to be substantially completed in 2010 or 2011. The agreement required our customers to be on our
wireless network by June 30, 2009, but allowed our customers to use the AT&T Mobility network for roaming during the transition period. We successfully migrated all
but 200 customers from the AT&T Mobility network to our network by the required transition date of June 30, 2009. The four-year transition period, which expires June
30, 2012, provides us adequate time to replace the Dobson/AT&T network in Alaska with our own wireless facilities. Under the agreement, AT&T Mobility’s obligation to
purchase network services from us terminated as of July 1, 2008. AT&T Mobility provided us with a large block of wireless network usage at no charge to facilitate the
transition of our customers to our facilities. We will pay for usage in excess of that base transitional amount. Under the previous agreement with Dobson, our margin was
fixed. Under the new agreement with AT&T Mobility, we will pay for usage in excess of the block of no charge minutes on a per minute basis. The block of wireless
network usage at no charge is expected to substantially reduce our wireless product Cost of Goods Sold during the approximate four year period beginning June 4, 2008
and ending June 30, 2012.

Alaska Wireless Contingent Payment
On July 1, 2008 we completed the acquisition of all of the ownership interests in Alaska Wireless. We made an initial payment on the acquisition date and we expect to
make an additional payment of approximately $6.2 million in 2010 that is contingent on the achievement of certain financial conditions.

Subsequent Event
We have performed an evaluation of subsequent events through November 6, 2009, which is the date the financial statements were issued.

On November 3, 2009, we closed on the issuance of $425.0 million of new 8 %% Senior Notes due in 2019 at a price of 99.17% of the face value to be issued by our

wholly-owned subsidiary, GCI, Inc. The net proceeds of the offering will be used to retire our existing senior secured credit facility indebtedness and for general corporate
purposes.
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PART I
ITEM 2.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

"

In the following discussion, General Communication, Inc. and its direct and indirect subsidiaries are referred to as “we,” “us” and “our.”

Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations discusses our consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”). The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. On an on-going basis, we evaluate our estimates and judgments, including those related to the
allowance for doubtful receivables, unbilled revenues, accrual of the USF high-cost area program subsidy, share-based compensation, reserve for future customer credits,
valuation allowances for deferred income tax assets, depreciable and amortizable lives of assets, the carrying value of long-lived assets including goodwill, cable certificates
and wireless licenses, our effective tax rate, purchase price allocations, the accrual of cost of goods sold exclusive of depreciation and amortization ("Cost of Goods Sold"),
depreciation, and contingencies and litigation. We base our estimates and judgments on historical experience and on various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions. See also our “Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking
Statements.”

General Overview

Through our focus on long-term results, acquisitions, and strategic capital investments, we strive to consistently grow our revenues and expand our margins. We have
historically met our cash needs for operations and regular and maintenance capital expenditures through our cash flows from operating activities. Historically, cash
requirements for significant acquisitions and major capital expenditures have been provided largely through our financing activities. The ongoing weakness in the national
economy continues to negatively impact consumer confidence and spending. If these trends continue, they could lead to reductions in our customers’ spending which could
impact our revenue growth. We believe the Alaska economy continues to perform well compared to most other states at the current time. Mortgage foreclosure rates in
Alaska are among the lowest in the nation and the commercial real estate market is steady. The majority of our revenue is driven by the strength of the Alaska economy which
appears to be relatively well positioned to weather recessionary pressures. The State of Alaska has large cash reserves that should enable it to maintain its budget for at least
the next two fiscal years. This is important for Alaska’s economy as the State is the largest employer and second largest source of gross state product. We cannot predict the
impact the economic crisis may have on us.

Our five reportable segments are Consumer, Network Access, Commercial, Managed Broadband and Regulated Operations. Our reportable segments are business units that
offer different products, are each managed separately, and serve distinct types of customers. The Network Access segment provides services to other common carrier
customers and the Managed Broadband segment provides services to rural school districts, hospitals and health clinics. Effective June 1, 2008, we purchased 100% of the
outstanding stock of United Utilities, Inc. ("UUI") and Unicom, Inc. ("Unicom"). The financial results of the long-distance, local access, wireless and Internet services sold to
consumer and commercial customers of certain of these acquired companies are reported in the Regulated Operations segment. The financial results of the long-distance
services sold to other common carrier customers and the managed broadband services components of certain of these acquired companies are included in the Network
Access and Managed Broadband Services segments, respectively. Effective July 1, 2008, we closed on our purchase of 100% of the ownership interests of Alaska Wireless
whose results are included in the Consumer segment.
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Following are our segments and the services and products each offers to its customers:

Reportable Segments

Regulated
Services and Products Consumer Network Access Commercial Managed Broadband Operations
Voice:
Long-distance X X X X
Local Access X X X X
Directories X
Video X X
Data:
Internet X X X X X
Data Networks X X X
Managed Services X X
Managed Broadband Services X
Wireless X X X X

An overview of our services and products follows.

Voice Services and Products

Long-distance
We generate long-distance services revenues from monthly plan fees and usage charges.

Factors that have the greatest impact on year-to-year changes in long-distance services revenues include the rate per minute charged to customers and usage volumes
expressed as minutes of use.

Common carrier traffic routed to us for termination in Alaska is largely dependent on traffic routed to our common carrier customers by their customers. Pricing pressures, new
program offerings, and market and business consolidations continue to evolve in the markets served by our other common carrier customers. If, as a result, their traffic is
reduced, our traffic will also likely be reduced or, if their competitors’ costs to terminate or originate traffic in Alaska are reduced, our pricing may be reduced to respond to
competitive pressures, consistent with federal law. Additionally, disruption in the economy resulting from terrorist attacks and other attacks or acts of war could affect our
carrier customers. We are unable to predict the effect on us of such changes. However, given the materiality of other common carrier revenues to us, a significant reduction in
traffic or pricing could have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations and liquidity.

AT&T Mobility, LLC (“AT&T Mobility”) acquired Dobson Communications Corporation (“Dobson”), including its Alaska properties, on November 15, 2007. In December 2007
we signed an agreement with AT&T Mobility that provided for an orderly transition of our wireless customers from the Dobson/AT&T network in Alaska to our wireless facilities
that we began building in 2008 and are expected to be substantially completed in 2010 or 2011. The agreement required our customers to be on our wireless network by June
30, 2009, but allowed our customers to use the AT&T Mobility network for roaming during the transition period. We started transitioning our customers to our wireless
facilities in November 2008. We successfully migrated all but 200 customers from the AT&T Mobility network to our network by the required transition date of June 30,

2009. The four-year transition period, which expires June 30, 2012, provides us adequate time to replace the Dobson/AT&T network in Alaska with our own wireless facilities.
Under the agreement, AT&T Mobility’s obligation to purchase network services from us terminated as of July 1, 2008. AT&T Mobility provided us with a large block of wireless
network usage at no charge to facilitate the transition of our customers to our facilities. We will pay for usage in excess of that base transitional amount. Under the previous
agreement with Dobson, our margin was fixed. Under the new agreement with AT&T Mobility, we will pay for usage in excess of the block of no charge minutes on a per
minute basis. The block of wireless network usage at no charge is expected to substantially reduce our wireless product Cost of Goods Sold during the approximate four year
period beginning June 4, 2008 and ending June 30, 2012.
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Due in large part to the favorable synergistic effects of our bundling strategy focused on consumer and commercial customers, long-distance services continue to be a
significant contributor to our overall performance, although the migration of traffic from our voice products to our data and wireless products continues.

Our long-distance service faces significant competition from AT&T Alascom ("Alascom"), ACS, Matanuska Telephone Association ("MTA"), long-distance resellers, and certain
smaller rural local telephone companies that have entered the long-distance market. We believe our approach to developing, pricing, and providing long-distance services and
bundling different services will continue to allow us to be competitive in providing those services.

Local Access

We generate local access services revenues from five primary sources: (1) basic dial tone services; (2) data network and special access services; (3) Universal Service
Administrative Company ("USAC") support; (4) origination and termination of long-distance calls for other common carriers; and (5) features and other charges, including voice
mail, caller ID, distinctive ring, inside wiring and subscriber line charges.

The primary factors that contribute to year-to-year changes in local access services revenues include the average number of subscribers to our services during a given
reporting period, the average monthly rates charged for non-traffic sensitive services, the number and type of additional premium features selected, the traffic sensitive access
rates charged to carriers and support received from the USAC.

We estimate that our September 30, 2009 and 2008 total lines in service represent a statewide market share of 34% and 33%, respectively. At September 30, 2009 and 2008,
73% and 69%, respectively, of our lines are provided on our own facilities.

Our local access service faces significant competition in Anchorage, Fairbanks, Juneau, and the Kenai Soldotna area from ACS, which is the largest incumbent local
exchange carrier ("ILEC") in Alaska. In the Matanuska-Susitna Valley our local access service faces competition from MTA, the ILEC in this area. We compete against other
smaller ILECs in certain smaller communities. We believe our approach to developing, pricing, and providing local access services and bundling different services will
continue to allow us to be competitive in providing those services.

UUI and its subsidiary, United-KUC, Inc. ("United-KUC"), which we acquired effective June 1, 2008, are ILECs and therefore are subject to regulation by the Regulatory
Commission of Alaska (“RCA”). UUI and United-KUC do not face significant competition although we expect technological changes and wireless substitution will affect their
results.

We plan to continue to deploy digital local phone service ("DLPS") lines which utilize our coaxial cable facilities. This service delivery method allows us to utilize our own cable
facilities to provide local access service to our customers and avoid paying local loop charges to the ILEC.

On May 1, 2008, the Federal Communications Commission ("FCC") issued an order adopting the recommendation of the Joint Board to impose a state-by-state interim cap on
high cost funds to be distributed to competitive Eligible Telecommunications Carriers ("ETC"). As part of the revised policy, the FCC adopted a limited exception from the cap
for competitive ETCs serving tribal lands or Alaska Native regions. While the operation of the cap will generally reduce the high cost fund amounts available to competitive
ETCs as new competitive ETCs are designated and as existing competitive ETCs acquire new customers, providers like us who serve tribal lands or Alaska Native regions
were provided some relief. On March 5, 2009, the FCC issued an additional order waiving a previously adopted limitation to the exception, the result of which is to provide
uncapped support for all lines served by competitive ETCs for tribal lands or Alaska Native regions during the time the interim cap is in effect. The uncapped support for tribal
lands or Alaska Native regions and the cap for all other regions will be in place until the FCC takes action on proposals for long term reform.

The Joint Board has recommended for FCC consideration long-term options for reforming Universal Service Fund ("USF") support, including establishing separate funds for
mobility and broadband support. Separately, the FCC has issued two reform proposals for changing the basis for support amounts. On April 8, 2009, the FCC issued a
Notice of Inquiry to review aspects of its high cost support
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program. Comments were filed on May 8, 2009, and replies were filed on June 8, 2009. We cannot predict at this time the outcome of the FCC proceedings to consider USF
reform proposals or their respective impacts on us. Both these and any future regulatory, legislative, or judicial actions could affect the operation of the USF and result in a
change in our revenue for providing local access services in new and existing markets and facilities-based wireless services in new markets.

Directories
We sell advertising in our yellow pages directories to commercial customers, distribute white and yellow pages directories to customers in certain markets we serve, and offer
an on-line directory.

Video Services and Products
We generate cable services revenues from three primary sources: (1) digital programming services, including monthly basic and premium subscriptions, pay-per-view movies,
video on demand and one-time events, such as sporting events; (2) equipment rentals; and (3) advertising sales.

Our cable systems serve 40 communities and areas in Alaska, including the state’s five largest population centers, Anchorage, Fairbanks, the Matanuska-Susitna Valley, the
Kenai Peninsula, and Juneau. We transmit an entirely digital signal for all cable television channels in all markets we serve.

The primary factors that contribute to period-to-period changes in cable services revenues include average monthly subscription rates and pay-per-view and video on demand
buys, the mix among basic, premium and digital tier services, the average number of cable television subscribers during a given reporting period, set-top box utilization and
related rates, revenues generated from new product offerings, and sales of cable advertising services.

Our cable service offerings are bundled with various combinations of our long-distance, local access, wireless, and Internet services. Value-added premium services are
available for additional charges.

Our cable television systems face competition primarily from alternative methods of receiving and distributing television signals, including DBS and digital video over
telephone lines, and other sources of news, information and entertainment, including Internet services.

Data Services and Products

Internet

We generate Internet services revenues from four primary sources: (1) access product services, including cable modem, dial-up, and dedicated access; (2) network
management services; (3) wholesale access for other common carriers; and (4) usage charges.

The primary factors that contribute to year-to-year changes in Internet services revenues include the average number of subscribers to our services during a given reporting
period, the average monthly subscription rates, the amount of bandwidth purchased by large commercial customers, and the number and type of additional premium features
selected.

Marketing campaigns continue to be deployed featuring bundled products. Our Internet offerings are bundled with various combinations of our long-distance, cable, local
access, and wireless services and provide free or discounted basic or premium Internet services. Value-added premium Internet features are available for additional charges.

We compete with a number of Internet service providers in our markets. We believe our approach to developing, pricing, and providing Internet services allows us to be
competitive in providing those services.

Data Networks

We generate data network services revenue from two primary sources: (1) leasing capacity on our facilities that utilize voice and data transmission circuits dedicated to
particular subscribers, which link a device in one location to another in a different location and (2) through the sale of Internet Protocol ("IP") based data services on a secured
shared network to businesses linking multiple enterprise locations. The factor that has the greatest impact on year-to-year changes in data network services revenues is the
number of data networks in use. We compete against Alascom, ACS and other local telecommunication service providers.
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Managed Services

We design, sell, install, service and operate, on behalf of certain customers, communications and computer networking equipment and provide field/depot, third party, technical
support, communications consulting and outsourcing services. We also supply integrated voice and data communications systems incorporating interstate and intrastate digital
data networks, point-to-point and multipoint private network and small earth station services. There are a number of competing companies in Alaska that actively sell and
maintain data and voice communications systems.

Our ability to integrate communications networks and data communications equipment has allowed us to maintain our market position based on “value added” support
services rather than price competition. These services are blended with other transport products into unique customer solutions, including managed services and outsourcing.

Managed Broadband Services
We generate managed broadband services revenue through our SchoolAccess ®, ConnectMD@® and managed video conferencing products. Our customers may purchase

end-to-end broadband services solutions blended with other transport and software products. There are several competing companies in Alaska that actively sell broadband
services. Our ability to provide end-to-end broadband services solutions has allowed us to maintain our market position based on “value added” products and services rather
than solely based on price competition.

SchoolAccess® is a suite of services designed to advance the educational opportunities of students in underserved regions of the country. Our SchoolAccess @ division
provides Internet and distance learning services designed exclusively for the school environment. The Schools and Libraries Program of the USF makes discounts available to
eligible rural school districts for telecommunication services and monthly Internet service charges. The program is intended to ensure that rural school districts have access to
affordable services.

Our network, Internet and software application services provided through our Managed Broadband segment’s Medical Services Division are branded as ConnectMD ®. Our
ConnectMDe services are currently provided under contract to medical businesses in Alaska, Washington and Montana. The Rural Health Care Program of the USF makes
discounts available to eligible rural health care providers for telecommunication services and monthly Internet service charges. The program is intended to ensure that rural
health care providers pay no more for telecommunications in the provision of health care services than their urban counterparts. Customers utilize ConnectMDe services to
securely move data, images, or voice traffic, to include real time multipoint interactive video.

We offer a managed video conferencing product for use in distance learning, telemedicine and group communication and collaboration environments. The product is designed
to offer customers enhanced communication services that support video, audio and data presentation. Our product benefits customers by reducing travel costs, improving
course equity in education and increasing the quality of health services available to patients. The product bundles our data products, video conferencing services and optional
rental of video conferencing endpoint equipment. Our video conferencing services include multipoint conferencing, Integrated Services Digital Network gateway and
transcoding services, online scheduling and conference control, and videoconference recording, archiving and streaming. We provide 24-hour technical support via telephone
or online.

Wireless Services and Products
We generate wireless services and equipment revenues from five primary sources: (1) monthly plan fees; (2) usage and roaming charges; (3) USAC support; (4) wireless
Internet access; and (5) handset and accessory sales.

We offer wireless services by selling services over our own facilities and, primarily in 2008, we resold AT&T Mobility's services under the GCI brand name and by selling

services over our own facilities under the Alaska DigiTel and Alaska Wireless brand names. We compete against AT&T Mobility, ACS, MTA, and resellers of those services in
Anchorage and other markets. The GCI and Alaska DigiTel brands compete against each other.
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In December 2007 we signed an agreement with AT&T Mobility that provided for an orderly transition of our wireless customers from the AT&T Mobility network in Alaska to
our wireless facilities. The agreement required our customers to be on our wireless network by June 30, 2009, but allowed our customers to use the AT&T Mobility network for
roaming during the transition period. We started transitioning our customers to our wireless facilities in November 2008. We successfully migrated all but 200 customers
from the AT&T Mobility network to our network by the required transition date of June 30, 2009. The four-year transition period, which expires June 30, 2012, provides us
adequate time to replace the AT&T Mobility network in Alaska with our own wireless facilities.

For a discussion of the FCC's action on proposals for long term reform of USF support, please see Part | — Item 2 — Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations — Voice Services and Products — Local Access.

Results of Operations

The following table sets forth selected Statements of Operations data as a percentage of total revenues for the periods indicated (underlying data rounded to the nearest
thousands):

Percentage Percentage
Three Months Ended Change 1 Nine Months Ended Change 1
September 30, 2009 September 30, 2009
2009 2008 vs. 2008 2009 2008 vs. 2008
(Unaudited)
Statements of Operations Data:
Revenues:
Consumer segment 50% 44% 13% 49% 44% 15%
Network Access segment 20% 25% (22%) 21% 28% (21%)
Commercial segment 18% 20% (8%) 19% 20% (2%)
Managed Broadband segment 8% 7% 14% 7% 6% 24%
Regulated Operations segment 4% 4% 2% 4% 2% 138%
Total revenues 100% 100% (1%) 100% 100% 5%
Selling, general and administrative expenses 33% 37% (13%) 35% 35% 4%
Depreciation and amortization expense 20% 19% 7% 21% 20% 11%
Operating income 14% 11% 30% 12% 9% 33%
Other expense, net 9% 9% (5%) 9% 8% 15%
Income before income tax expense 5% 2% 241% 3% 1% 138%
Net income 3% 1% 534% 2% 0% 604%
Net income attributable to GCI 3% 0% 1,536% 2% 1% 186%

1 Percentage change in underlying data.
Three Months Ended September 30, 2009 (“third quarter of 2009”) Compared to Three Months Ended September 30, 2008 (“third quarter of 2008”)

Overview of Revenues and Cost of Goods Sold

Total revenues decreased 1% from $151.7 million in the third quarter of 2008 to $150.8 million in the third quarter of 2009. Revenue decreases in our Network Access and
Commercial segments were partially off-set by increases in our Consumer, Managed Broadband and Regulated Operations segments. See the discussion below for more
information by segment.

Total Cost of Goods Sold decreased $200,000 from $50.4 million in the third quarter of 2008 to $50.2 million in the third quarter of 2009. Cost of Goods Sold decreases in our

Commercial and Network Access segments were partially off-set by increases in our Consumer, Managed Broadband and Regulated Operations segments. See the
discussion below for more information by segment.
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Consumer Segment Overview

Consumer segment revenue represented 50% of third quarter of 2009 consolidated revenues. The components of Consumer segment revenue are as follow (amounts in

thousands):
Third Quarter of Percentage
2009 2008 Change

Voice $ 12,487 11,582 8%
Video 27,612 26,241 5%
Data 12,726 10,745 18%
Wireless 22,196 17,917 24%

Total Consumer segment revenue $ 75,021 66,485 13%

Consumer segment Cost of Goods Sold represented 49% of third quarter of 2009 consolidated Cost of Goods Sold
Sold are as follows (amounts in thousands):

. The components of Consumer segment Cost of Goods

Third Quarter of Percentage
2009 2008 Change
Voice $ 4,000 4,357 (8%)
Video 11,921 10,094 18%
Data 1,127 1,598 (29%)
Wireless 7,638 4,525 69%
Total Consumer segment Cost of Goods Sold $ 24,686 20,574 20%
Consumer segment adjusted EBITDA, representing 46% of third quarter of 2009 consolidated adjusted EBITDA, is as follows (amounts in thousands):
Third Quarter of Percentage
2009 2008 Change
Consumer segment adjusted EBITDA $ 23,234 18,275 27%

See note 6 in the "Notes to Interim Consolidated Financial Statements" included in Part | of this quarterly report on Form 10-Q for a reconciliation of consolidated adjusted

EBITDA, a non-GAAP financial measure, to consolidated income before income tax expense.

Selected key performance indicators for our Consumer segment follow:

September 30, Percentage
2009 2008 Change
Voice:
Long-distance subscriberst 89,900 89,300 1%
Long-distance minutes carried (in millions) 28.0 31.2 (10%)
Total local access lines in service 2 82,700 79,200 4%
Local access lines in service on GCl facilities 2 72,700 64,300 13%
Video:
Basic subscribers3 129,600 131,200 (1%)
Digital programming tier subscribers4 77,600 70,100 11%
HD/DVR converter boxess 77,000 62,900 22%
Homes passed 231,400 227,400 2%
Average monthly gross revenue per subscribers $ 7095 $ 67.00 6%
Data:
Cable modem subscribers? 97,900 92,100 6%
Wireless:
Wireless lines in service8 109,900 81,200 35%
Average monthly gross revenue per subscriber9 $ 58.05 $ 55.21 5%
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1 A long-distance customer is defined as a customer account that is invoiced a monthly long-distance plan fee or has made a long-distance call during the month.

2 A local access line in service is defined as a revenue generating circuit or channel connecting a customer to the public switched telephone network.

3 A basic cable subscriber is defined as one basic tier of service delivered to an address or separate subunits thereof regardless of the number of outlets purchased. On
January 1, 2009, our Consumer segment transferred 2,900 basic cable subscribers to our Commercial segment.

4 A digital programming tier subscriber is defined as one digital programming tier of service delivered to an address or separate subunits thereof regardless of the number of
outlets or digital programming tiers purchased. Digital programming tier subscribers are a subset of basic subscribers.

5 A high definition/digital video recorder (“HD/DVR”) converter box is defined as one box rented by a digital programming or basic tier subscriber. A digital programming or
basic tier subscriber is not required to rent an HD/DVR converter box to receive service.

6 Quarter-to-date average monthly consumer video revenues divided by the average of consumer video basic subscribers at the beginning and end of the period.

7 A cable modem subscriber is defined by the purchase of cable modem service regardless of the level of service purchased. If one entity purchases multiple cable modem
service access points, each access point is counted as a subscriber. Cable modem subscribers may also be video basic subscribers though basic cable service is not
required to receive cable modem service. On January 1, 2009, our Consumer segment transferred 1,400 cable modem subscribers to our Commercial segment.

8 A wireless line in service is defined as a revenue generating wireless device.

9 Quarter-to-date average monthly consumer wireless revenues divided by the average of consumer wireless subscribers at the beginning and end of the period.

Consumer Segment Revenues

The increase in voice revenue is primarily due to an increase in monthly recurring local service fee revenue and a $734,000 or 84% increase in recognized support from the
USAC. The increase in the monthly recurring local service fee revenue is due to increased subscribers. The increase in USAC support is primarily due to increased local
subscribers including increases in locations that qualify for higher support rates. Additionally, in the third quarter of 2008 we recorded a decrease in recognized support from
the USAC primarily due to a change in our revenue accrual estimation to more precisely consider changes in FCC reimbursement and to consider uncertainties we believed
may impact the amount of reimbursement we received. In March 2009 an FCC order was issued, the result of which provided uncapped support for all lines served by
competitive ETCs for tribal lands or Alaska Native regions and allowed us to discontinue recording a reserve against our USAC support revenue and, therefore, no such
decrease was recognized in the third quarter of 2009. The increase was partially offset by decreased long-distance billable minutes carried.

The increase in video revenue is primarily due to the following:

A 4% increase in programming services revenue to $21.9 million in the third quarter of 2009 primarily resulting from an increase in digital programming tier
subscribers in the third quarter of 2009 and a rate increase on certain cable service offerings beginning in August 2009, and

A 11% increase in equipment rental revenue to $5.4 million in the third quarter of 2009 primarily resulting from our customers’ increased use of our HD/DVR
converter boxes.

The increase in data revenue is primarily due to a 19% increase in cable modem revenue to $11.0 million due to increased subscribers and their selection of more value-
added features.

The increase in wireless revenue is primarily due to an increase in the number of wireless subscribers and recognition of $1.2 million upon a change in our estimate of support
to be received from the USAC for interstate common line support of which $593,000 and $77,000 were related to the six months ended June 30, 2009 and the year ended
December 31, 2008, respectively. We accrue estimated program revenue quarterly and adjust our revenue as we obtain new information that changes the variables used to
calculate our estimate. The increase was partially off-set by receipt of $2.8 million in July 2008 from the USAC for retroactive interstate common line support at Alaska DigiTel
for which revenue was recognized in the third quarter of 2008.
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Consumer Segment Cost of Goods Sold
The decrease in voice Cost of Goods Sold is primarily due to cost savings resulting from the increased deployment of local access services DLPS lines on our own facilities
during the last three months of 2008 and the first nine months of 2009 and decreased voice minutes carried.

The video Cost of Goods Sold increase is primarily due to increased channels offered to our subscribers, increased rates paid to programmers, increased costs associated
with delivery of digital services offered over our HD/DVR converter boxes due to the increased number of boxes in service, an increase in digital programming tier subscribers,
and the recognition of a $594,000 liability to settle a billing issue with a cable programmer.

The decrease in data Cost of Goods Sold is primarily due to the transition of traffic to our own facilities from leased facilities and the addition of more peering partners for
Internet traffic.

The increase in wireless Cost of Goods Sold is primarily due to increased costs for wireless handset equipment sales associated with the increased number of wireless
subscribers and the inclusion of premium wireless handsets which have higher costs in certain promotions offered in the third quarter of 2009.

Consumer Segment Adjusted EBITDA

The increase in adjusted EBITDA is primarily due to increased margin resulting from increased revenue as described above in "Consumer Segment Revenues" and a
decrease in the selling, general and administrative expense that was allocated to our Consumer segment primarily due to a decrease in consolidated selling, general and
administrative expense in the third quarter of 2009 as compared to the third quarter of 2008. The increase in adjusted EBITDA is partially off-set by increased Cost of Goods
Sold as further described above in “Consumer Segment Cost of Goods Sold” and an increase in the 2008 segment margin upon which the selling, general and administrative
expense allocation is based.

Network Access Segment Overview
Network access segment revenue represented 20% of third quarter of 2009 consolidated revenues. The components of Network Access segment revenue are as follows
(amounts in thousands):

Third Quarter of Percentage
2009 2008 Change
Voice $ 12,197 19,671 (38%)
Data 14,876 18,148 (18%)
Wireless 3,190 959 233%
Total Network Access segment revenue $ 30,263 38,778 (22%)

Network Access segment Cost of Goods Sold represented 15% of third quarter of 2009 consolidated Cost of Goods Sold. The components of Network Access segment Cost
of Goods Sold are as follows (amounts in thousands):

Third Quarter of Percentage
2009 2008 Change
Voice $ 4,406 6,529 (33%)
Data 2,792 3,456 (19%)
Wireless 338 516 (35%)
Total Network Access segment Cost of Goods Sold 3 7,536 10,501 (28%)

Network Access segment adjusted EBITDA, representing 28% of third quarter of 2009 consolidated adjusted EBITDA, is as follows (amounts in thousands):

Third Quarter of Percentage
2009 2008 Change
Network Access segment adjusted EBITDA $ 14,084 17,869 (21%)

34




See note 6 in the "Notes to Interim Consolidated Financial Statements" included in Part | of this quarterly report on Form 10-Q for a reconciliation of consolidated adjusted
EBITDA, a non-GAAP financial measure, to consolidated income before income tax expense.

Selected key performance indicators for our Network Access segment follow:

September 30, Percentage
2009 2008 Change
Voice:
Long-distance minutes carried (in millions) 224.6 255.8 (12%)
Data:
Total Internet service provider access lines in service 1 1,700 1,800 (6%)

1 An Internet service provider access line in service is defined as a revenue generating circuit or channel connecting a customer to the public switched telephone network.

Network Access Segment Revenues

The decrease in voice revenue is due in part to the June 4, 2008 implementation of the new distribution agreement with AT&T Mobility as described in "Part | — ltem Il —
Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Voice Services and Products — Long Distance." The voice revenue decrease also
resulted from a decrease in our average rate per minute on billable minutes carried for our common carrier customers and the transition of voice traffic to dedicated

networks. The average rate per minute decrease is primarily due to a change in the composition of traffic and a 3.0% interstate rate decrease mandated by federal law. Voice
revenue continues to decline as expected due to increased competition in the Network Access business. The increased competition will continue to compress the rates we
may charge our customers and, therefore, we expect a continued decline in Network Access segment voice revenue.

The decrease in data revenue is primarily due to a change in the composition of traffic resulting in IRU operating leases and service agreements replacing data network
service agreements. The nature of IRU operating leases and service agreements generally results in lower periodic revenue as compared to data network service
agreements.

The increase in wireless revenue is due to increased roaming revenue in the third quarter of 2009 primarily due to the construction of our state-wide GSM network starting in
2008 and the 2008 expansion of our Code Division Multiple Access ("CDMA") network.

Network Access Segment Cost of Goods Sold
The decrease in voice Cost of Goods Sold is primarily due to decreased long-distance minutes carried and the movement of more traffic onto our network in lieu of carrying
traffic on third-party networks.

The decrease in data Cost of Goods Sold is primarily due to a change in the composition of traffic resulting in IRU operating leases and service agreements replacing data
network service agreements.

Network Access Segment Adjusted EBITDA

The adjusted EBITDA decrease is primarily due to decreased margin resulting from decreased revenue as described above in "Network Access Segment Revenues." The
adjusted EBITDA decrease is partially off-set by decreased Cost of Goods Sold as described above in “Network Access Segment Cost of Goods Sold” and a decrease in the
selling, general and administrative expense that was allocated to our Network Access segment primarily due to a decrease in consolidated selling, general and administrative
expense in the third quarter of 2009 as compared to the third quarter of 2008 and a decrease in the 2008 segment margin upon which the allocation is based.

Commercial Segment Overview

Commercial segment revenue represented 18% of third quarter of 2009 consolidated revenues. Commercial segment data revenue is comprised of monthly recurring charges
for data services and charges billed on a
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time and materials basis largely for personnel providing on-site customer support. This latter category can vary significantly based on project activity. The components of
Commercial segment revenue are as follows (amounts in thousands):

Third Quarter of Percentage
2009 2008 Change
Voice $ 7,688 7,597 1%
Video 2,320 2,999 (23%)
Data 15,801 18,140 (13%)
Wireless 1,971 1,430 38%
Total Commercial segment revenue $ 27,780 30,166 (8%)

Commercial segment Cost of Goods Sold represented 27% of third quarter of 2009 consolidated Cost of Goods Sold. The components of Commercial segment Cost of Goods
Sold are as follows (amounts in thousands):

Third Quarter of Percentage
2009 2008 Change
Voice $ 4,926 4,771 3%
Video 529 432 22%
Data 7,164 9,357 (23%)
Wireless 691 723 (4%)
Total Commercial segment Cost of Goods Sold $ 13,310 15,283 (13%)

Commercial segment adjusted EBITDA, representing 12% of third quarter of 2009 consolidated adjusted EBITDA, is as follows (amounts in thousands):

Third Quarter of Percentage
2009 2008 Change

Commercial segment adjusted EBITDA $ 6,154 6,045 2%

See note 6 in the "Notes to Interim Consolidated Financial Statements" included in Part | of this quarterly report on Form 10-Q for a reconciliation of consolidated adjusted
EBITDA, a non-GAAP financial measure, to consolidated income before income tax expense.

Selected key performance indicators for our Commercial segment follow:

September 30, Percentage
2009 2008 Change

Voice:

Long-distance subscriberst 9,700 10,200 (5%)
Long-distance minutes carried (in millions) 30.6 33.3 (8%)
Local access lines in service on GCl facilities 2 19,000 17,900 6%
Total local access lines in service 2 47,300 46,200 2%
Data:

Cable modem subscribers3s 10,600 9,000 18%
Wireless:

Wireless lines in service 4 10,100 6,900 46%

1 A long-distance customer is defined as a customer account that is invoiced a monthly long-distance plan fee or has made a long-distance call during the month.

2 A local access line in service is defined as a revenue generating circuit or channel connecting a customer to the public switched telephone network.

3 A cable modem subscriber is defined by the purchase of cable modem service regardless of the level of service purchased. If one entity purchases multiple cable modem
service access points, each access point is counted as a subscriber. On January 1, 2009, our Consumer segment transferred 1,400 cable modem subscribers to our
Commercial segment.

4 A wireless line in service is defined as a revenue generating wireless device.
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Commercial Segment Revenues
The decrease in video revenue is primarily due to a decrease in sales of cable advertising services due to the summer Olympics programming and state and federal political
advertising in the third quarter of 2008.

The decrease in data revenue is primarily due to a $2.1 million or 22% decrease in managed services project revenue.
The increase in wireless revenue is primarily due to increased wireless subscribers.

Commercial Segment Cost of Goods Sold
The decrease in data Cost of Goods Sold is primarily due to an $1.9 million or 28% decrease in managed services project Cost of Goods Sold.

Commercial Segment Adjusted EBITDA

The adjusted EBITDA increase was primarily due to a decrease in the selling, general and administrative expense that was allocated to our Commercial segment largely due
to a decrease in consolidated selling, general and administrative expense in the third quarter of 2009 as compared to the third quarter of 2008. The adjusted EBITDA
increase was partially off-set by a decrease in the third quarter of 2009 share-based compensation and non-cash contribution adjustments as compared to the third quarter of
2008.

Managed Broadband Segment Overview
Managed Broadband segment revenue, Cost of Goods sold and adjusted EBITDA represented 8%, 6% and 11% of third quarter of 2009 consolidated revenues, Cost of
Goods Sold and adjusted EBITDA, respectively.

Managed Broadband Segment Revenues
Managed Broadband segment revenue, which includes data products only, increased 14% to $11.7 million in third quarter of 2009 as compared to third quarter of 2008. The
increase is primarily due to increased data network lines purchased by our Rural Health customers.

Managed Broadband Segment Cost of Goods Sold
Managed Broadband segment Cost of Goods Sold increased 9% to $2.9 million primarily due to the increase in data network line costs.

Managed Broadband Segment Adjusted EBITDA

Managed Broadband segment adjusted EBITDA increased 29% to $5.5 million in 2009 primarily due to an increase in the margin resulting from increased revenue as
described above in "Managed Broadband Segment Revenues." The increase was partially offset by increased Cost of Goods Sold as described above in "Managed
Broadband Segment Cost of Goods Sold" and an increase in selling, general and administrative that was allocated to our Managed Broadband segment primarily due to an
increase in the 2008 segment margin upon which the allocation is based. The increase in selling, general and administrative expense was partially off-set by a decrease in
total consolidated selling, general and administrative expense .

See note 6 in the "Notes to Interim Consolidated Financial Statements" included in Part | of this quarterly report on Form 10-Q for a reconciliation of consolidated adjusted
EBITDA, a non-GAAP financial measure, to consolidated income before income tax expense.

Regulated Operations Segment Overview

Regulated Operations segment revenue, Cost of Goods sold and adjusted EBITDA represented 4%, 3% and 3% of third quarter of 2009 consolidated revenues, Cost of Goods
Sold and adjusted EBITDA, respectively.

Selected key performance indicators for our Regulated Operations segment follow:

September 30, Percentage
2009 2008 Change

Voice:
Long-distance subscriberst 600 900 (33%)

37




Long-distance minutes carried (in millions) 0.3 0.4 (25%)
Total local access lines in service (all on GCl facilities) 2 11,300 12,300 (8%)

1 A long-distance subscriber is defined as a customer account that is invoiced a monthly long-distance plan fee or has made a long-distance call during the month.
2 A local access line in service is defined as a revenue generating circuit or channel connecting a customer to the public switched telephone network.

Regulated Operations Segment Revenues
Regulated Operations segment revenues increased from $5.9 million in the third quarter of 2008 to $6.0 million in the third quarter of 2009.

Regulated Operations Segment Cost of Goods Sold
Regulated Operations segment Cost of Goods Sold increased from $1.4 million in the third quarter of 2008 to $1.7 million in the third quarter of 2009.

Regulated Operations Segment Adjusted EBITDA
Regulated Operations segment adjusted EBITDA was $1.3 million during the third quarter of 2009 and the third quarter of 2008.

See note 6 in the "Notes to Interim Consolidated Financial Statements" included in Part | of this quarterly report on Form 10-Q for a reconciliation of consolidated adjusted
EBITDA, a non-GAAP financial measure, to consolidated income before income tax expense.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses
Selling, general and administrative expenses decreased 13% to $49.0 million in the third quarter of 2009 primarily due to the following:

- A $4.0 million decrease in share-based compensation expense primarily due to the reversal of expense properly recognized in previous periods for certain
performance-based stock options and restricted stock awards that are not expected to vest,

- The absence of $1.8 million to terminate a management agreement that was paid in 2008 upon the acquisition of our non-controlling interest in Alaska DigiTel, and

- The absence of a $960,000 contribution expense recognized upon the gift of an IRU to the University of Alaska that was recorded in the third quarter of 2008.

As a percentage of total revenues, selling, general and administrative expenses decreased to 33% in the third quarter of 2009 from 37% in the third quarter of 2008, primarily
due to the decreases described above without a proportional decrease in revenues.

Depreciation and Amortization Expense

Depreciation and amortization expense increased 7% to $30.9 million in the third quarter of 2009. The increase is primarily due to our $322.3 million investment in equipment
and facilities placed into service during 2008 for which a full year of depreciation will be recorded in 2009 and the $148.1 million investment in equipment and facilities placed
into service during 2009 for which a partial year of depreciation will be recorded in 2009. The increase is partially off-set by a $1.4 million depreciation charge in the third
quarter of 2008 to change the estimated useful life of certain assets that were decommissioned at the end of 2008.

Other Expense, Net

Other expense, net of other income, decreased 5% to $13.1 million in the third quarter of 2009 primarily due to a $1.0 million decrease in interest expense to $13.1 million in
the third quarter of 2009. The interest expense decrease is due to a decrease in the LIBOR rate between the third quarter of 2008 and the third quarter of 2009 and the
absence of a $519,000 loss that was recorded in the third quarter of 2008 relating to the fair value change on a derivative instrument. These decreases were partially offset
by a $990,000 decrease in capitalized interest to $181,000 due to decreased capital expenditures subject to interest capitalization.
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Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense totaled $3.3 million and $1.5 million in the third quarters of 2009 and 2008, respectively. Our effective income tax rate decreased from 69% in 2008 to
43% in 2009 primarily due to a decrease in the permanent differences as compared to our net income before income tax expense in 2009 as compared to 2008 and the effect
of non-deductible tax adjustments treated as discrete items in the third quarter.

At September 30, 2009, we have (1) tax net operating loss carryforwards of $185.1 million that will begin expiring primarily in 2019 if not utilized, and (2) alternative minimum
tax credit carryforwards of $3.1 million available to offset regular income tax payable in future years.

We have recorded deferred tax assets of $75.9 million associated with income tax net operating losses that were generated from 1995 to 2009, and that expire from 2011 to
2029, and with charitable contributions that were converted to net operating losses in 2004 through 2007, and that expire in 2024 through 2027, respectively.

Tax benefits associated with recorded deferred tax assets are considered to be more likely than not realizable through future reversals of existing taxable temporary
differences and future taxable income. The amount of deferred tax asset considered realizable, however, could be reduced if estimates of future taxable income during the
carryforward period are reduced which would result in additional income tax expense. We estimate that our effective annual income tax rate for financial statement purposes
will be 43% to 45% in the year ended December 31, 2009.

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2009 (“2009”) Compared to Nine Months Ended September 30, 2008 (“2008”)

Overview of Revenues and Cost of Goods Sold
Total revenues increased 5% from $428.8 million in 2008 to $448.3 million in 2009. Revenue increases in our Consumer, Managed Broadband and Regulated Operations
segments were partially off-set by decreased revenue in our Network Access and Commercial segments. See the discussion below for more information by segment.

Total Cost of Goods Sold decreased 6% from $154.2 million in 2008 to $145.4 million in 2009. Cost of Goods Sold decreases in our Commercial, Network Access and
Managed Broadband segments were partially off-set by an increase in our Consumer and Regulated Operations segments. See the discussion below for more information by
segment.

Consumer Segment Overview
Consumer segment revenue represented 49% of 2009 consolidated revenues. The components of Consumer segment revenue are as follow (amounts in thousands):

Percentage
2009 2008 Change
Voice $ 39,390 35,560 11%
Video 82,114 77,556 6%
Data 36,654 31,227 17%
Wireless 60,981 45,638 34%
Total Consumer segment revenue $ 219,139 189,981 15%

Consumer segment Cost of Goods Sold represented 50% of 2009 consolidated Cost of Goods Sold. The components of Consumer segment Cost of Goods Sold are as
follows (amounts in thousands):

Percentage
2009 2008 Change
Voice $ 11,492 14,084 (18%)
Video 34,280 29,960 14%
Data 3,255 5,301 (39%)
Wireless 23,073 19,619 18%
Total Consumer segment Cost of Goods Sold $ 72,100 68,964 5%
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Consumer segment adjusted EBITDA, representing 43% of 2009 consolidated adjusted EBITDA, is as follows (amounts in thousands):

Percentage
2009 2008 Change
Consumer segment adjusted EBITDA $ 64,304 43,952 46%

See note 6 in the "Notes to Interim Consolidated Financial Statements" included in Part | of this quarterly report on Form 10-Q for a reconciliation of consolidated adjusted
EBITDA, a non-GAAP financial measure, to consolidated income before income tax expense.

Selected key performance indicators for our Consumer segment follow:

September 30, Percentage
2009 2008 Change

Voice:

Long-distance minutes carried (in millions) 85.9 96.8 (11%)
Video:

Average monthly gross revenue per subscriber 1 $ 69.61 §$ 66.58 5%

Wireless:

Average monthly gross revenue per subscriber2 $ 59.03 $ 56.37 5%

1 Year-to-date average monthly consumer video revenues divided by the average of consumer video basic subscribers at the beginning and end of the period.
2 Year-to-date average monthly consumer wireless revenues divided by the average of consumer wireless subscribers at the beginning and end of the period.

Please refer to our three-month results of operations discussion for additional selected key performance indicators for the third quarters of 2009 and 2008.

Consumer Segment Revenues
The increase in voice revenue is primarily due to a $3.5 million or 108% increase in recognized support from the USAC and an increase in monthly recurring local service fee
revenue. The increase in USAC support is primarily due to the following:

- An FCC order issued in March 2009, the result of which provided uncapped support for all lines served by competitive ETCs for tribal lands or Alaska Native regions
retroactive to August 2008. The issuance of this order allowed us to recognize in the first quarter 2009 $674,000 in additional USAC support for services provided
from August 2008 to December 2008 that is included in the revenue increase discussed above,

- Beginning in the third quarter of 2008 we recorded a decrease in recognized support from the USAC primarily due to a change in our revenue accrual estimation to
more precisely consider changes in FCC reimbursement and to consider uncertainties we believed may impact the amount of reimbursement we receive. The
issuance of the March 2009 FCC order discussed above allowed us to discontinue recording a reserve against our USAC support revenue and, therefore, no such
decrease was recognized in the third quarter of 2009, and

- Increased local subscribers including increases in locations that qualify for higher support rates.

The increase in monthly recurring local service fee revenue is due to increased subscribers. The increase in voice revenue was partially offset by decreased long-distance
billable minutes carried.

The increase in video revenue is primarily due to the following:
- A 5% increase in programming services revenue to $65.2 million in 2009 primarily resulting from an increase in digital programming tier subscribers in 2009 and a

rate increase on certain cable service offerings beginning in August 2009, and
- A 13% increase in equipment rental revenue to $16.0 million in 2009 primarily resulting from our customers’ increased use of our HD/DVR converter boxes.
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The increase in data revenue is primarily due to a 18% increase in cable modem revenue to $31.6 million due to increased subscribers and their selection of more value-
added features.

The increase in wireless revenue is primarily due to the following:

- An $8.9 million or 144% increase in recognized support from the USAC primarily due to the following:

o Increased wireless subscribers in areas that receive USAC support,

o Recognition of $3.1 million to be received from the USAC for interstate common line support for a new local access area for which we received ETC status
in May 2009 of which $1.7 million was related to services provided during the year ended December 31, 2008. Collectability was not reasonably assured
until we were awarded ETC status, therefore, we deferred revenue recognition until such status was confirmed,

o Recognition of $1.1 million upon a change in our estimate of support to be received from the USAC for interstate common line support of which $593,000
and $77,000 were related to the six months ended June 30, 2009 and the year ended December 31, 2008, respectively. We accrue estimated program
revenue quarterly and adjust our revenue as we obtain new information that changes the variables used to calculate our estimate, and

o The FCC order issued in March 2009, the result of which provides uncapped support for all lines served by competitive ETCs for tribal lands or Alaska
Native regions retroactive to August 2008. The issuance of this order allowed us to recognize $810,000 in additional USAC support from August 2008 to
December 2008 in 2009 that is included in the revenue increase discussed above.

- An increase in the number of wireless subscribers.

The increase in wireless revenue was partially off-set by receipt of $2.8 million in July 2008 from the USAC for retroactive interstate common line support at Alaska DigiTel for
which revenue was recognized in 2008.

Consumer Segment Cost of Goods Sold
The decrease in voice Cost of Goods Sold is primarily due to cost savings resulting from the increased deployment of local access services DLPS lines on our own facilities
during the last three months of 2008 and first nine months of 2009 and decreased voice minutes carried.

The video Cost of Goods Sold increase is primarily due to increased channels offered to our subscribers, increased rates paid to programmers, increased costs associated
with delivery of digital services offered over our HD/DVR converter boxes due to the increased number of boxes in service, an increase in digital programming tier subscribers,
and the recognition of a $594,000 liability to settle a billing issue with a cable programmer.

The decrease in data Cost of Goods Sold is primarily due to the transition of traffic to our own facilities from leased facilities and the addition of more peering partners for
Internet traffic.

The increase in wireless Cost of Goods Sold is primarily due to increased costs for wireless handset equipment sales associated with the increased number of wireless
subscribers and the inclusion of premium wireless handsets which have higher costs in certain promotions offered in the third quarter of 2009. The increase was partially off-
set by decreased costs due to the June 4, 2008 implementation of the new distribution agreement with AT&T Mobility as described in "Part | — ltem Il — Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Voice Services and Products — Long Distance."

Consumer Segment Adjusted EBITDA

The increase in adjusted EBITDA is primarily due to increased margin resulting from increased revenue as described above in "Consumer Segment Revenues." The
increased margin was partially offset by increased Cost of Goods Sold as described above in "Consumer Segment Cost of Goods Sold" and an increase in the selling, general
and administrative expense that was allocated to our Consumer segment primarily due to an increase in the 2008 segment margin upon which the allocation is based and an
increase in consolidated selling, general and administrative expense.
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Network Access Segment Overview
Network access segment revenue represented 21% of 2009 consolidated revenues. The components of Network Access segment revenue are as follows (amounts in
thousands):

Percentage
2009 2008 Change
Voice $ 39,975 64,826 (38%)
Data 48,903 52,975 (8%)
Wireless 5,704 2,042 179%
Total Network Access segment revenue $ 94,582 119,843 (21%)

Network Access segment Cost of Goods Sold represented 14% of 2009 consolidated Cost of Goods Sold. The components of Network Access segment Cost of Goods Sold
are as follows (amounts in thousands):

Percentage
2009 2008 Change
Voice $ 12,947 22,096 (41%)
Data 7,004 8,979 (22%)
Wireless 825 1,210 (32%)
Total Network Access segment Cost of Goods Sold $ 20,776 32,285 (36%)
Network Access segment adjusted EBITDA, representing 32% of 2009 consolidated adjusted EBITDA, is as follows (amounts in thousands):
Percentage
2009 2008 Change
Network Access segment adjusted EBITDA $ 46,674 59,682 (22%)

See note 6 in the "Notes to Interim Consolidated Financial Statements" included in Part | of this quarterly report on Form 10-Q for a reconciliation of consolidated adjusted
EBITDA, a non-GAAP financial measure, to consolidated income before income tax expense.

Selected key performance indicators for our Network Access segment follow:

September 30, Percentage
2009 2008 Change

Voice:
Long-distance minutes carried (in millions) 640.6 896.6 (29%)

Please refer to our three-month results of operations discussion for additional selected key performance indicators for the third quarters of 2009 and 2008.

Network Access Segment Revenues

The decrease in voice revenue is due in part to the June 4, 2008 implementation of the new distribution agreement with AT&T Mobility as described in "Part | — Item Il —
Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Voice Services and Products — Long Distance." The voice revenue decrease also
resulted from a decrease in our average rate per minute on billable minutes carried for our common carrier customers and the transition of voice traffic to dedicated

networks. The average rate per minute decrease is primarily due to a change in the composition of traffic and a 3.0% interstate rate decrease mandated by federal law. Voice
revenue continues to decline as expected due to increased competition in the Network Access business. The increased competition will continue to compress the rates we
may charge our customers and, therefore, we expect a continued decline in Network Access segment voice revenue.

The decrease in data revenue is primarily due to a change in the composition of traffic resulting in IRU operating leases and service agreements replacing data network
service agreements.
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The increase in wireless revenue is primarily due to increased roaming revenue in 2009 primarily due to the construction of our state-wide GSM network starting in 2008 and
the 2008 expansion of our CDMA network.

Network Access Segment Cost of Goods Sold
The decrease in voice Cost of Goods Sold is primarily due to decreased long-distance minutes carried and the movement of more traffic onto our network in lieu of carrying
traffic on third party networks.

The decrease in data Cost of Goods Sold is primarily due to a change in the composition of traffic resulting in IRU operating leases and service agreements replacing data
network service agreements and a $585,000 favorable adjustment resulting from a refund of fiber repair costs. The fiber repair costs were originally recognized in the first
quarter of 2008. Due to the uncertainty surrounding the refund of the fiber repair costs, we deferred recognition until collection of the refund was reasonably assured.

Network Access Segment Adjusted EBITDA

The adjusted EBITDA decrease is primarily due to decreased margin resulting from decreased revenue as described above in "Network Access Segment Revenues." The
adjusted EBITDA decrease is partially off-set by decreased Cost of Goods Sold as described above in “Network Access Segment Cost of Goods Sold” and a decrease in the
selling, general and administrative expense that was allocated to our Network Access segment primarily due to a decrease in the 2008 segment margin upon which the
allocation is based.

Commercial Segment Overview

Commercial segment revenue represented 19% of 2009 consolidated revenues. Commercial segment data revenue is comprised of monthly recurring charges for data
services and charges billed on a time and materials basis largely for personnel providing on-site customer support. This latter category can vary significantly based on project
activity. The components of Commercial segment revenue are as follows (amounts in thousands):

Percentage
2009 2008 Change
Voice $ 23,373 22,091 6%
Video 6,591 6,968 (5%)
Data 47,725 50,933 (6%)
Wireless 4,994 4,209 19%
Total Commercial segment revenue $ 82,683 84,201 (2%)

Commercial segment Cost of Goods Sold represented 27% of 2009 consolidated Cost of Goods Sold. The components of Commercial segment Cost of Goods Sold are as
follows (amounts in thousands):

Percentage
2009 2008 Change
Voice $ 14,393 14,509 (1%)
Video 1,532 1,202 27%
Data 21,425 24,418 (12%)
Wireless 2,292 3,137 (27%)
Total Commercial segment Cost of Goods Sold $ 39,642 43,266 (8%)
Commercial segment adjusted EBITDA, representing 12% of 2009 consolidated adjusted EBITDA, is as follows (amounts in thousands):
Percentage
2009 2008 Change
Commercial segment adjusted EBITDA $ 17,047 16,066 6%

See note 6 in the "Notes to Interim Consolidated Financial Statements" included in Part | of this quarterly report on Form 10-Q for a reconciliation of consolidated adjusted
EBITDA, a non-GAAP financial measure, to consolidated income before income tax expense.
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Selected key performance indicators for our Commercial segment follow:

September 30, Percentage
2009 2008 Change

Voice:
Long-distance minutes carried (in millions) 94.5 991 (5%)

Please refer to our three-month results of operations discussion for additional selected key performance indicators for the third quarter of 2009 and for the second quarter of
2008.

Commercial Segment Revenues

The increase in voice revenue is primarily due to increased local access lines in service and a $1.1 million or 144% increase in recognized support from the USAC primarily
due to increased local subscribers and the FCC order issued in March 2009, the result of which provides uncapped support for all lines served by competitive ETCs for tribal
lands or Alaska Native regions retroactive to August 2008. The issuance of this order allowed us to recognize $386,000 in additional USAC support from August 2008 to
December 2008 in 2009 that is included in the revenue increase discussed above. The increase in voice revenue was partially off-set by decreased long-distance subscribers
and decreased voice minutes carried.

The decrease in data revenue is primarily due to a $3.6 million or 16% decrease in managed services project revenue partially off-set by an $1.0 million or 8% increase in
Internet revenue primarily due to an increase in cable modem subscribers.

Commercial Segment Cost of Goods Sold
The decrease in data Cost of Goods Sold is primarily due to a $2.8 million or 14% decrease in managed services project Cost of Goods Sold.

The decrease in wireless Cost of Goods Sold is primarily due to decreased costs due to the June 4, 2008 implementation of the new distribution agreement with AT&T Mobility
as described in "Part | — Item Il — Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Voice Services and Products — Long
Distance." The decrease was partially off-set by costs associated with the increased number of wireless subscribers.

Commercial Segment Adjusted EBITDA
The adjusted EBITDA increase was primarily due to increased margin resulting from decreased Cost of Goods Sold as described above in “Commercial Segment Cost of
Goods Sold.”

Managed Broadband Segment Overview
Managed Broadband segment revenue, Cost of Goods sold and adjusted EBITDA represented 7%, 5% and 10% of 2009 consolidated revenues, Cost of Goods Sold and
adjusted EBITDA, respectively.

Managed Broadband Segment Revenues

Managed Broadband segment revenue, which includes data products only, increased 24% to $33.3 million in 2009 as compared to 2008. The increase is primarily due to
increased circuits purchased by our Rural Health customers and a $5.8 million increase from our acquisition of Unicom effective June 1, 2008. The increase is partially off-set
by a $753,000 or 8% decrease in School Access revenue primarily due to the decision to temporarily stop revenue recognition for services provided to a certain continuing
customer pending resolution of certain issues and a $678,000 or 58% decrease in product sales revenue. Product sales revenue can vary depending upon activity.

Managed Broadband Segment Cost of Goods Sold
Managed Broadband segment Cost of Goods Sold decreased from $8.0 million in 2008 to $7.9 million in 2009 primarily due to the decrease in costs associated with product
sales partially off-set by an increase in costs associated with the increased revenue.

Managed Broadband Segment Adjusted EBITDA

Managed Broadband segment adjusted EBITDA increased 50% to $14.8 million in 2009 primarily due to an increase in the margin resulting from increased revenue as
described above in "Managed Broadband Segment Revenues."
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See note 6 in the "Notes to Interim Consolidated Financial Statements" included in Part | of this quarterly report on Form 10-Q for a reconciliation of consolidated adjusted
EBITDA, a non-GAAP financial measure, to consolidated income before income tax expense.

Regulated Operations Segment Overview

Regulated Operations segment revenue, Cost of Goods Sold and adjusted EBITDA represented 4%, 3% and 3% of 2009 consolidated revenues, Cost of Goods Sold and
adjusted EBITDA, respectively. The Regulated Operations segment includes voice, data and wireless services.

Selected key performance indicators for our Regulated Operations segment follow:

September 30, Percentage
2009 2008 Change

Voice:
Long-distance minutes carried (in millions) 0.9 0.5 95%

Please refer to our three-month results of operations discussion for additional selected key performance indicators for the third quarters of 2009 and 2008.

Regulated Operations Segment Revenues
Regulated Operations segment revenues increased from $7.8 million in 2008 to $18.6 million in 2009 primarily due to our acquisition of UUI effective June 1, 2008.

Regulated Operations Segment Cost of Goods Sold
Regulated Operations segment Cost of Goods Sold increased from $1.7 million in 2008 to $4.9 million in 2009 primarily due to our acquisition of UUI effective June 1, 2008.

Regulated Operations Segment Adjusted EBITDA
Regulated Operations segment adjusted EBITDA was $5.2 million in 2009 and $1.7 in 2008.

See note 6 in the "Notes to Interim Consolidated Financial Statements" included in Part | of this quarterly report on Form 10-Q for a reconciliation of consolidated adjusted
EBITDA, a non-GAAP financial measure, to consolidated income before income tax expense.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses
Selling, general and administrative expenses increased 4% to $157.4 million in 2009 primarily due to the following:

- A $6.2 million increase in labor costs,

- $4.1 million in additional expense resulting from our June 1, 2008, acquisition of UUI and Unicom,

- $1.2 million in additional expense incurred in 2009 for the conversion of our customers' wireless phones to our facilities, and
- A $1.2 million increase in our company-wide success sharing bonus accrual in 2009.

The increases were partially off-set by a $3.7 million decrease in share-based compensation expense primarily due to the reversal of expense properly recognized in previous
periods for certain performance-based stock options and restricted stock awards that are not expected to vest and the absence of $1.8 million to terminate a management
agreement that was paid in 2008 upon the acquisition of our non-controlling interest in Alaska Digitel.

As a percentage of total revenues, selling, general and administrative expenses are 35% in 2009 and 2008.

Depreciation and Amortization Expense

Depreciation and amortization expense increased 11% to $92.8 million in 2009. The increase is primarily due to our $322.3 million investment in equipment and facilities
placed into service during 2008 for which a full year of depreciation will be recorded in 2009 and the $148.1 million investment in equipment and facilities placed into service
during 2009 for which a partial year of depreciation will be recorded in 2009. The increase is partially off-set by a $9.9 million depreciation charge in 2008 to change the
estimated useful life of certain assets that were decommissioned at the end of 2008.
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Other Expense, Net
Other expense, net of other income, increased 15% to $39.0 million in 2009 primarily due to a $4.2 million increase in interest expense to $39.0 million in 2009 due to the
following:

- $2.8 million in additional interest expense resulting from the Galaxy 18 capital lease commencing in May 2008, and

- A $1.3 million increase in interest expense on our Senior Credit Facility to $12.8 million resulting from additional debt from the Additional Incremental Term Loan
agreement beginning in May 2008 and the increased interest rate on our Senior Credit Facility beginning in May 2008. This increase is partially off-set by a $2.5
million decrease in capitalized interest to $510,000 in 2009 due to decreased capital expenditures subject to interest capitalization in 2009 and a decrease in the
LIBOR rate between 2008 and 2009.

The interest expense increase is partially off-set by the absence of a $519,000 loss that was recorded in 2008 relating to the fair value change on a derivative instrument and
a $615,000 decrease in loan and senior note fees due to the 2008 modification of our Senior Credit Facility resulting in $1.2 million of other third party costs and bank fees.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense totaled $6.5 million and $4.8 million in 2009 and 2008, respectively. Our effective income tax rate decreased from 82% in 2008 to 47% in 2009 primarily
due to a decrease in the permanent differences as compared to our net income before income tax expense in 2009 as compared to 2008 and the effect of non-deductible tax
adjustments treated as discrete items in 2009.

Multiple System Operator Operating Statistics
Our operating statistics include customer information from our Consumer and Commercial segments which offer services utilizing our cable services’ facilities.

The standardized definition of a customer relationship is the number of customers that receive at least one level of service utilizing our cable service facilities, encompassing
voice, video, and data services, without regard to which services customers purchase. At September 30, 2009 and 2008 we had 133,000 and 131,400 customer relationships,
respectively.

The standardized definition of a revenue generating unit is the sum of all primary digital video, high-speed data, and telephony customers, not counting additional outlets. At
September 30, 2009 and 2008 we had 339,000 and 322,100 revenue generating units, respectively.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our principal sources of current liquidity are cash and cash equivalents. We believe, but can provide no assurances, that we will be able to meet our current and long-term
liquidity and capital requirements and fixed charges through our cash flows from operating activities, existing cash, cash equivalents, credit facilities, and other external
financing and equity sources. Should operating cash flows be insufficient to support additional borrowings and principal payments scheduled under our existing credit facilities,
capital expenditures will likely be reduced.

Global capital and credit markets have experienced increased volatility and disruption. Despite this volatility and disruption, we continue to have full access to our Senior
Credit Facility. Although there can be no assurances in these difficult economic times that financial institutions will continue to provide financing, we believe that the lenders
participating in our credit facilities will be willing and able to provide financing to us in accordance with their legal obligations under our credit facilities. While our short-term and
long-term financing abilities are believed to be adequate as a supplement to internally generated cash flows to fund capital expenditures and acquisitions as opportunities
arise, the decline in the global financial markets may negatively impact our ability to access the capital markets in a timely manner and on attractive terms, which may have a
negative impact on our ability to grow our business.
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We monitor the third-party depository institutions that hold our cash and cash equivalents on a daily basis. Our emphasis is primarily on safety of principal and secondarily on
maximizing yield on those funds.

Our net cash flows provided by and (used for) operating, investing and financing activities, as reflected in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the nine months
ended September 30, 2009 and 2008, are summarized as follows:

2009 2008
Operating activities $ 67,252 132,736
Investing activities (95,302) (242,285)
Financing activities 20,649 128,883
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 3 (7,401) 19,334

Operating Activities

The decrease in cash flows provided by operating activities is due primarily to the absence of cash received up-front for IRU operating leases and service agreement in 2009
compared to 2008, a $15.0 million contractually required payment in 2009, and an increase in cash payments to reduce accounts payable and accrued payroll liabilities that
was partially offset by an increase in depreciation and amortization expense for 2009 compared to 2008.

Investing Activities
The decrease in cash flows used for investing activities is due primarily to a decrease in spending for property and equipment, including construction in progress in 2009 and
the absence of any business acquisitions in 2009 compared to 2008.

Capital Expenditures

Our expenditures for property and equipment, including construction in progress, totaled $85.6 million and $288.5 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2009
and 2008, respectively. The 2009 expenditures do not include $12.1 million for additions of property and equipment that had been accrued at December 31, 2008 and paid for
during the nine months ended September 30, 2009 net of $3.6 million of additions of property and equipment that were accrued as of September 30, 2009. The 2008
expenditures include additions of $21.4 million for property and equipment that are accrued at September 30, 2008 net of $6.1 million that had been accrued at December 31,
2007 and paid for during the nine months ended September 30, 2008. Our capital expenditure requirements in excess of approximately $25.0 million per year are largely
success driven and are a result of the progress we are making in the marketplace. We expect our 2009 expenditures for property and equipment for our core operations,
including construction in progress to total $115.0 million to $120.0 million, depending on available opportunities and the amount of cash flow we generate during 2009.

Alaska Wireless Contingent Payment
On July 1, 2008 we completed the acquisition of all of the ownership interests in Alaska Wireless. We made an initial payment on the acquisition date and we expect to make
an additional payment of approximately $6.2 million in 2010 that is contingent on the achievement of certain financial conditions.

Financing Activities
The decrease in cash flows provided by financing activities is due primarily to reduced borrowing on our Senior Credit Facility in 2009.

Senior Notes and Senior Credit Facility
At September 30, 2009, we were in compliance with all our Senior Notes and Senior Credit Facility loan covenants.

On November 3, 2009, we closed on the issuance of $425.0 million of new 8 %% Senior Notes due in 2019 at a price of 99.17% to be issued by our wholly-owned subsidiary,
GCl, Inc. The net proceeds of the offering will be used to retire our existing senior secured credit facility indebtedness and for general corporate purposes.

The long-distance, local access, cable, Internet and wireless services industries continue to experience substantial competition, regulatory uncertainty, and continuing

technological changes. Our future results of operations will be affected by our ability to react to changes in the competitive and regulatory environment and by our ability to
fund and implement new or enhanced technologies. We are unable to determine how
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competition, economic conditions, and regulatory and technological changes will affect our ability to obtain additional financing under acceptable terms and conditions. A
complete discussion of our liquidity and capital resources can be found in Item 7 "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" in
our December 31, 2008 annual report on Form 10-K.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our accounting and reporting policies comply with U.S. GAAP. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions. The financial position and results of operations can be affected by these estimates and assumptions, which are integral to understanding reported results.
Critical accounting policies are those policies that management believes are the most important to the portrayal of our financial condition and results, and require management
to make estimates that are difficult, subjective or complex. Most accounting policies are not considered by management to be critical accounting policies. Several factors are
considered in determining whether or not a policy is critical in the preparation of financial statements. These factors include, among other things, whether the estimates are
significant to the financial statements, the nature of the estimates, the ability to readily validate the estimates with other information including third parties or available prices,
and sensitivity of the estimates to changes in economic conditions and whether alternative accounting methods may be utilized under U.S. GAAP. For all of these policies,
management cautions that future events rarely develop exactly as forecast, and the best estimates routinely require adjustment. Management has discussed the development
and the selection of critical accounting policies with our Audit Committee.

Those policies considered to be critical accounting policies for the nine months ended September 30, 2009 are the allowance for doubtful accounts, impairment and useful
lives of intangible assets, accruals for unbilled costs, and the valuation allowance for net operating loss deferred tax assets. A complete discussion of our critical accounting
policies can be found in Item 7 "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" in our December 31, 2008 annual report on Form
10-K.

During the third quarter of 2009, we changed the date of our annual impairment test from the last day of the fiscal year to the last day of the tenth month of the fiscal year. As
we have grown, it has become increasingly difficult to complete the various impairment analyses in a timely manner, therefore, we believe the change in accounting principle
related to the annual testing date is preferable as it provides us additional time to complete the impairment test and report the results of that test in our annual filing on Form
10-K. We believe that the proposed change to the annual testing date will not delay, accelerate or avoid an impairment charge. We believe that this change in accounting
principle is preferable under the circumstances and will not result in adjustments to our financial statements when applied retrospectively. The annual impairment test was
last performed as of December 31, 2008 and will be performed again as of October 31, 2009, therefore, less than 12 months will have elapsed since our last impairment test.

Other significant accounting policies, not involving the same level of measurement uncertainties as those discussed above, are nevertheless important to an understanding of
the financial statements. Policies related to revenue recognition, share-based compensation expense, and financial instruments require difficult judgments on complex matters
that are often subject to multiple sources of authoritative guidance. Certain of these and other matters are among topics currently under reexamination by accounting standards
setters and regulators. No specific conclusions reached by these standard setters appear likely to cause a material change in our accounting policies, although outcomes
cannot be predicted with confidence. A complete discussion of our significant accounting policies can be found in note 1 included in Part Il of our December 31, 2008 annual
report on Form 10-K.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We are exposed to various types of market risk in the normal course of business, including the impact of interest rate changes. We do not hold derivatives for trading
purposes.

Our Senior Credit Facility carries interest rate risk. Amounts borrowed under this agreement bear interest at LIBOR plus 4.25% or less depending upon our Total Leverage

Ratio (as defined). Should the LIBOR rate change, our interest expense will increase or decrease accordingly. In July 2008, we entered into an interest rate cap agreement
with a two year term to limit the LIBOR rate on $180.0 million of variable interest rate
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debt to 4.5%. The agreement is being accounted for as a derivative under SFAS 133 "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities." As of September 30,
2009, we have borrowed $387.9 million subject to interest rate risk. On this amount, each 1% increase in the LIBOR interest rate would result in $3.9 million of additional gross
interest cost on an annualized basis.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, we carried out an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our “disclosure
controls and procedures” (as defined below) under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial
Officer. Based on that evaluation and as described below under “Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting” (Item 4(b)), we identified material weaknesses in our
"internal control over financial reporting” (as defined in Iltem 4(b) below). Because of these material weaknesses, which are in the process of being remediated as described
below under “Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting” (Item 4(b)), our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer,
concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective as of September 30, 2009, which is the end of the period covered by this report.

Our "disclosure controls and procedures" are controls and other procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in our reports filed or
submitted under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act") is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified
in the SEC’s rules and forms. Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be
disclosed in our reports filed under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to management to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

The certifications attached as Exhibits 31 and 32 to this report should be read in conjunction with the disclosures set forth herein.

(b) Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our entity-level control related to the selection and application of accounting policies in accordance with U.S. GAAP was not designed to include policies and procedures to
periodically review our accounting policies to ensure ongoing U.S. GAAP compliance. This led to ineffective procedures for recording depreciation expense that were identified
in the second quarter of 2008, which caused material errors in interim financial reporting which were corrected through the restatement of our 2007 interim financial
information. Although we began to remediate this material weakness in June 2008, by expanding our accounting policy documentation, we have not had sufficient time to fully
implement the control changes necessary to ensure that a misstatement of interim or annual financial reporting does not occur. We continued to work towards remediation of
this deficiency during the nine months ended September 30, 2009, and will continue to remediate this deficiency during the remainder of 2009 by implementing policies and
procedures to periodically review our accounting policies to ensure ongoing U.S. GAAP compliance.

The internal control over financial reporting at Alaska DigiTel did not include i) activities adequate to timely identify changes in financial reporting risks, ii) activities adequate to
monitor the continued effectiveness of controls, and iii) staff with adequate technical expertise to ensure that policies and procedures necessary for reliable interim and annual
financial statements were selected and applied. Prior to August 18, 2008, our control over the operations of Alaska DigiTel was limited as required by the FCC upon its
approval of our initial acquisition completed in January 2007. These control deficiencies in our Alaska DigiTel business represented material weaknesses in our internal
control over financial reporting and led to the failure to timely identify and respond to triggering events which necessitated a change in useful life of depreciable assets to
ensure reporting in accordance with U.S. GAAP. These material weaknesses led to errors in our interim financial reporting which were corrected through the restatement of
our interim financial information for the
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March 31 and June 30, 2008 quarterly periods. We made progress towards remediation with the acquisition of the Alaska DigiTel minority interest on August 18, 2008, which
gave us 100% ownership and control over this subsidiary. During the fourth quarter of 2008 we made progress towards integrating Alaska DigiTel into our financial reporting
process by replacing the accounting management with GCI accounting management. During the first quarter of 2009 we integrated Alaska DigiTel’s general ledger into our
general ledger system. During the nine months ended September 30, 3009, we have been integrating Alaska DigiTel’'s accounting processes into our internal control over
financial reporting and will continue this integration during the remainder of 2009. Additionally, Alaska DigiTel will become subject to the improvements we anticipate due to
the fourth quarter 2008 expansion of our accounting policy documentation and the 2009 implementation of a procedure to periodically review our accounting policies to ensure
ongoing U.S. GAAP compliance. Although we have taken the steps noted above to remediate this material weakness, we have not had sufficient time to fully implement the
control changes necessary to ensure that a misstatement of interim or annual financial reporting does not occur.

Except as described above, there were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended September 30, 2009, that have materially affected,
or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

A company's "internal control over financial reporting" is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, a company's principal executive and principal financial officers,
and effected by a company's board of directors, management and other personnel, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Internal control over financial reporting has inherent limitations. Internal control over financial reporting is a process that involves human diligence and compliance and is
subject to lapses in judgment and breakdowns resulting from human failures. Internal control over financial reporting also can be circumvented by collusion or improper
management override. Because of such limitations, there is a risk that material misstatements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis by internal control over
financial reporting. However, these inherent limitations are known features of the financial reporting process. Therefore, it is possible to design into the process safeguards to
reduce, though not eliminate, this risk.

We may enhance, modify, and supplement internal controls and disclosure controls and procedures based on experience.

PART Il - OTHER INFORMATION
Item 1. Legal Proceedings

Except as set forth in this item, neither the Company, its property nor any of its subsidiaries or their property is a party to or subject to any material pending legal proceedings.
We are parties to various claims and pending litigation as part of the normal course of business. We are also involved in several administrative proceedings and filings with the
FCC and state regulatory authorities. In the opinion of management, the nature and disposition of these matters are considered routine and arising in the ordinary course of
business. In addition, the FCC's Office of Inspector General has initiated an investigation of our compliance with program rules and requirements under certain USF

programs. The request covers the period beginning January 1, 2004 through August 31, 2008, and relates to amounts received by Alaska DigiTel and its affiliates during that
period. Alaska DigiTel was an Alaska based wireless communications company of which we acquired an 81.9% equity interest on January 2, 2007 and the remaining 18.1%
equity interest on August 18, 2008 and was subsequently dissolved in April 2009. Prior to August 18, 2008, our control over the operations of Alaska DigiTel was limited as
required by the FCC upon its approval of our initial acquisition completed in January 2007. This request has not had a material impact on our statement of operations,
financial position or cash flows but given the preliminary nature of this request we are unable to assess the ultimate resolution of this matter.
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Item 6. Exhibits

Exhibit No. Description

10.161 First Amendment to the Full-Time Transponder Capacity Agreement (Pre-Launch) between Intelsat Corporation, formerly known as PanAmSat
Corporation and GCI Communication Corp. dated February 15, 2008 #

10.162 Second Amendment to the Full-Time Transponder Capacity Agreement (Pre-Launch) between Intelsat Corporation, formerly known as PanAmSat
Corporation and GCl Communication Corp. dated April 9, 2008 #

10.163 Third Amendment to the Full-Time Transponder Capacity Agreement (Pre-Launch) between Intelsat Corporation, formerly known as PanAmSat
Corporation and GCl Communication Corp. dated June 4, 2008 #

10.164 Fourth Amendment to the Full-Time Transponder Capacity Agreement (Pre-Launch) between Intelsat Corporation, formerly known as PanAmSat
Corporation and GCl Communication Corp. dated June 4, 2008 #

10.165 Fifth Amendment to the Full-Time Transponder Capacity Agreement (Pre-Launch) between Intelsat Corporation, formerly known as PanAmSat
Corporation and GCl Communication Corp. dated September 30, 2008 #

10.166 Sixth Amendment to the Full-Time Transponder Capacity Agreement (Pre-Launch) between Intelsat Corporation, formerly known as PanAmSat
Corporation and GCl Communication Corp. dated October 31, 2008 #

10.167 Seventh Amendment to the Full-Time Transponder Capacity Agreement (Pre-Launch) between Intelsat Corporation, formerly known as PanAmSat
Corporation and GCl Communication Corp. dated November 6, 2008 #

10.168 Eighth Amendment to the Full-Time Transponder Capacity Agreement (Pre-Launch) between Intelsat Corporation, formerly known as PanAmSat
Corporation and GCl Communication Corp. dated June 8, 2009 #

10.169 Fifteenth Amendment to Contract for Alaska Access Services between General Communication, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiary GCI
Communication Corp., and MCI Communications Services, Inc. d/b/a Verizon Business Services (successor-in-interest to MCIl Network Services,
Inc., which was formally known as MCI WorldCom Network Services) dated May 5, 2009 #

18.1 Letter regarding change in accounting principle

311 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 by our President and
Director

31.2 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 by our Senior Vice
President, Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and Treasurer

32.1 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 by our President and
Director

32.2 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 by our Senior Vice

President, Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and Treasurer

CONFIDENTIAL PORTION has been omitted pursuant to a request for confidential treatment by us to, and the material has been separately filed
with, the Securities and Exchange Commission. Each omitted Confidential Portion is marked by three asterisks.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly
authorized.

GENERAL COMMUNICATION, INC.

Signature Title Date
/s/ Ronald A. Duncan President and Director November 6, 2009
Ronald A. Duncan (Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ John M. Lowber Senior Vice President, Chief Financial November 6, 2009
John M. Lowber Officer, Secretary and Treasurer

(Principal Financial Officer)

/s/ Lynda L. Tarbath Vice President, Chief Accounting Officer November 6, 2009

Lynda L. Tarbath (Principal Accounting Officer)
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CONFIDENTIAL
Exhibit 10.161

*** Confidential Portion has been omitted pursuant to a request for confidential treatment by the Company to, and the material has been
separately filed with, the SEC. Each omitted Confidential Portion is marked by three Asterisks.

FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE FULL-TIME-TRANSPONDER CAPACITY AGREEMENT (PRE-LAUNCH)

This First Amendment to the Full-Time Transponder Capacity Agreement (Pre-Launch) (the “First Amendment”) is made and entered into as of this 15th day of
February, 2008 by and between INTELSAT CORPORATION, formerly known as PanAmSat Corporation, a Delaware corporation (“Intelsat”), and GCI
COMMUNICATION CORP., an Alaskan corporation (“Customer”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, pursuant to that certain Full-Time Transponder Capacity Agreement (Pre-Launch) dated as of March 31, 2006, (collectively, the “Agreement”) between
Intelsat and Customer, Intelsat is providing Customer with *** (***) *** transponders and up to *** (***) *** transponders on Galaxy 18, and *** (***) *** transponder
and *** (***) *** transponder on Horizons 1;

WHEREAS, Customer and Intelsat wish to amend the terms of the Agreement to provide Customer with an additional *** transponder capacity on Horizons 1;

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of mutual covenants and agreements hereinafter set forth, the sufficiency and receipt of which is hereby
acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

1. Except as specifically provided herein, all terms and provisions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. Any references to PanAmSat in the
Agreement shall be deemed, in context, to refer to Intelsat. Each capitalized term used but not defined herein shall have the meaning ascribed to such
term in the Agreement.

2. Provision of *** (***) *** Transponder Capacity on Horizons 1.
Intelsat shall lease to Customer, and Customer shall lease from Intelsat, an additional *** (***) *** Transponder Segment located on Transponder
No. *** and meeting the "Performance Specifications" set forth in the "Technical Appendix" attached hereto as Appendix B1 (the "Additional ***
Transponder Capacity").

3. Additional Transponder Capacity Term. The Capacity Term for the Additional
Transponder Capacity shall commence on ***, *** and shall terminate on ***, *** (the "Additional *** Transponder Capacity Term").

4. Monthly Fee. The Monthly Fee for such additional *** Transponder Capacity shall be US$***,*** per month.

5. Non-Applicable Provisions from the Agreement. Intelsat and Customer agree and acknowledge that the terms of the backup protection from the
Agreement (including, without limitation, Article 17 and any and all references to such backup protection shall not apply to the Additional *** Transponder
Capacity.

6. Except as specifically set forth in this Amendment, all terms and conditions of the amendment remain in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties hereto has duly executed and delivered this First Amendment as of the day and year above written.

INTELSAT CORPORATION GCI COMMUNICATION CORP.
/s/ Patricia Casey /s/ Jimmy R. Sipes
Name: Patricia Casey Name: Jimmy R. Sipes

Title: Senior VP and Deputy General Counsel Title: VP Network Services & Chief Engineer










CONFIDENTIAL
Exhibit 10.162

*** Confidential Portion has been omitted pursuant to a request for confidential treatment by the Company to, and the material has been
separately filed with, the SEC. Each omitted Confidential Portion is marked by three Asterisks.

SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE FULL-TIME-TRANSPONDER CAPACITY AGREEMENT (PRE-LAUNCH)

This Second Amendment to the Full-Time Transponder Capacity Agreement (Pre-Launch) (the “Second Amendment”) is made and entered into as of this 9th day
of April, 2008 by and between INTELSAT CORPORATION, formerly known as PanAmSat Corporation, a Delaware corporation (“Intelsat’), and GCI
COMMUNICATION CORP., an Alaskan corporation (“Customer”).

RECITALS
WHEREAS, pursuant to that certain Full-Time Transponder Capacity Agreement (Pre-Launch) dated as of March 31, 2006, as amended by that First Amendment
dated as of February 15, 2008 (collectively, the “Agreement”) between Intelsat and Customer, Intelsat is providing Customer with *** (***) *** transponders and up
to *** (***) *** transponders on Galaxy 18, and *** (***) *** transponder and *** (***) *** transponder, and the Additional *** Capacity for the Additional ***

Transponder Term on Horizons 1;

WHEREAS, Customer and Intelsat wish to amend the terms of the Agreement as a result of the launch delay of the Galaxy 18 satellite;

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of mutual covenants and agreements hereinafter set forth, the sufficiency and receipt of which is hereby
acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

1. Except as specifically provided herein, all terms and provisions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. Any references to PanAmSat in the
Agreement shall be deemed, in context, to refer to Intelsat. Each capitalized term used but not defined herein shall have the meaning ascribed to such

term in the Agreement.

2. Section 1.1, Description of Capacity. This Section shall be deleted and replaced with the following:

Intelsat agrees to provide to Customer and Customer agrees to accept from Intelsat, on a full time basis twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven (7) days a
week), in outerspace, for the Capacity Term (as defined here), the Customer’s Transponder Capacity (defined below) meeting the “Performance
Specifications” set forth in the “Technical Appendix” attached hereto as Appendix B. For purposes of this Agreement, the “Customer’s Transponder

Capacity” or “Customer’s Transponders” shall consist of (a) *** (***) ***, *** (***) *** transponders (collectively, *** “*** Transponders’ and individually, the
“** Transponder”) and up to *** (***) *** Primary *** transponders as set forth in Section 1.5, below, as described in Appendix A to this Agreement from

that certain U.S. domestic satellite referred to by Intelsat as “Galaxy 18,” which is currently waiting for launch and planned to replace “Galaxy XR” located
in geostationary orbit at 123 degrees West Longitude, and (b) *** (***) ***, *** transponder (the “*** Transponder”) and *** (***) *** transponder as set forth
in Section 1.6, below, as described in Appendix A to this Agreement from the *** payload of that certain satellite referred to by Intelsat as “Horizons 1” at

127 degrees West Longitude. The transponders on the Satellite and the beams in which these transponders are grouped are referred to as
“Transponder(s)” and the “Beam(s),” respectively. Galaxy 18 or Horizons 1 or such other satellite as to which Customer may at the time be using
capacity hereunder, as applied in context herein, is referred to as the “Satellite.” Intelsat shall not preempt or interrupt the provision of the Customer’s
Transponder Capacity to Customer, except as specifically permitted under this Agreement. The terms of this Agreement shall not modify or amend the
terms of the following agreements between the parties: (a) Galaxy X Transponder Purchase Agreement dated as of August 24, 1995, as amended; and
(b) the Full-Time Transponder Capacity Agreement dated October 31, 2002.

3. Section 1.5, *** Transponders. This Section shall be deleted and replaced with the following:

Within the first twelve (12) months after the Commencement Date (as defined in Article 2, below), if *** (***) *** Transponder (the “*** Transponder”)
becomes available, then Intelsat shall have the one-time obligation to lease to Customer such Transponder by delivering to Customer a written notice of
such availability (the “*** Transponder Availability Notice”), and Customer shall lease such Transponder from Intelsat, provided, that Customer shall have
the right to *** Transponder over a period of *** (***) *** following the Commencement Date for the *** Transponder in ***. The term of the lease of such
*** Transponder shall commence on the date selected by Customer, however, no later than the *** (***) *** after the Commencement Date, and the
Monthly Fee for the *** Transponder shall be *** (***) *** Transponders provided under this Agreement, as such may be pro rated for incremental
use. Customer must provide Intelsat, in writing, the desired commencement date for the 10t C-band Transponder *** (***) *** Intelsat’s ***Availability
Notice. Provided that Customer is leasing a total of *** (***) *** Transponders under this Agreement, Intelsat shall have the one-time obligation to offer
Customer a *** (***) *** Transponder on Galaxy 18 that becomes available *** (***) *** after the Commencement Date (the “*** Transponder”), by
delivering to Customer a written notice of such availability (the “*** Transponder Availability Notice”). If Customer desires to lease such *** Transponder
from Intelsat, then Customer must provide Intelsat, in writing, the desired commencement date for the *** Transponder *** (***) *** Intelsat's ***
Availability Notice. The term of the lease of such *** Transponder shall commence on the date selected by Customer, *** (***) *** the date on the ***
Transponder Availability Notice. The Monthly Fee for the *** Transponder shall be *** (***) *** Transponders provided under this Agreement. The lease
of each such *** Transponder and *** Transponder shall continue through the end date for the *** Transponders as set forth in Article 2, below. Any
added *** Transponder(s) shall constitute, and shall be deemed to be, a *** Transponder. The terms of this Section 1.5 shall not apply during the
Termination *** Period (as defined in Article 19, below) or in the event that Customer elects to exercise its special *** as set forth in Article 19.

4. Article 2, Capacity Term. This Article shall be deleted and replaced with the following:



This Agreement shall be effective as of the Execution Date. The “Capacity Term” for *** Transponders shall commence on the date that Intelsat certifies
to Customer that Galaxy 18 has been placed into commercial operation in its assigned orbital location, with the Customer’s Transponder Capacity
meeting the Performance Specifications and available for Customer use (the “Commencement Date for *** Transponders”). The lease of the *** (***) ***
Transponder will begin on the Commencement Date for *** Transponders. The Capacity Term for *** Transponders shall continue until the later of (a)
23:59 Greenwich Mean Time on the date that is one (1) day earlier than the *** (***) year anniversary of such Commencement Date, or (b) the date
which would result in the Capacity Term being equal to *** (***) *xx (*xx sy e sk ok o) s (kxx) =% (*** “***”) The foregoing notwithstanding, the
Commencement Date for Customer’s C-band Transponders will not occur prior to the date that Galaxy XR is taken out of commercial service from 123
degrees West Longitude under the Galaxy X Transponder Purchase Agreement dated as of August 24, 1995, as amended. The “Capacity Term” for ***
Transponder shall commence on **¥, *** (***) xx* &% gp () wax e ewex ey - The Capacity Term for *** Transponder shall be coterminous with the ***
Transponders End Date.

5. Section 10.4, Customer Assignment. This Section shall be deleted and replaced with the following:

Customer may assign its rights and interests under this Agreement, only in whole, and only after securing Intelsat's express prior written consent, which
consent shall not be unreasonably delayed, withheld or conditioned. The foregoing notwithstanding, Customer may on notice to Intelsat assign its rights and
interests under this Agreement, in whole, to (a) to an affiliated entity or (b) to an entity that is acquiring all or substantially all of GCI Communication Corp.’s
assets, by merger or otherwise, in either case subject also to the following conditions: (i) the proposed assignee in writing assumes all of Customer’s
obligations with respect to this Agreement and agrees to be treated as Customer for all purposes under this Agreement; and (ii) such written undertaking is
delivered to Intelsat prior to or contemporaneously with the assignment. Further, Customer shall have the right to *** (***) *** Transponders leased from
Intelsat hereunder (***), ***, to ***; provided, however, that (a) the *** of the Agreement; (b) Customer shall remain responsible to Intelsat ***; and (c)
Customer shall make Intelsat ***. For example, as of the date on which Customer *** (***) *** Transponders, Customer shall *** (***) ***
Transponders. Customer may *** under this *** “***” (as defined below) which shall take such rights subject to the terms of this Agreement pursuant to such
transfer documents as Intelsat shall reasonably request, *** Galaxy XR; provided that no such transfer or assignment shall relieve Customer of any of its
obligations hereunder without Intelsat’s written approval. As used herein, “***” shall mean an entity which ***, *** “***” *** = Ag ysed in this Section 10.4, “***”
R ek ke e e e ek As used in this Agreement, “affiliate” shall mean any entity controlling, controlled by, or under common control
with Customer.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties hereto has duly executed and delivered this Second Amendment as of the day and year above written.

INTELSAT CORPORATION GClI COMMUNICATION CORP.
/s/ Patricia Casey /s/ Jimmy R. Sipes
Name: Patricia Casey Name: Jimmy R. Sipes

Title: Senior VP and Deputy General Counsel Title: VP Network Services & Chief Engineer
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THIRD AMENDMENT TO THE FULL-TIME-TRANSPONDER CAPACITY AGREEMENT (PRE-LAUNCH)

This Third Amendment to the Full-Time Transponder Capacity Agreement (Pre-Launch) (the “First Amendment”) is made and entered into as of this 4th day
of June, 2008 by and between INTELSAT CORPORATION, formerly known as PanAmSat Corporation, a Delaware corporation (“Intelsat”), and GClI
COMMUNICATION CORP., an Alaskan corporation (“Customer”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, pursuant to that certain Full-Time Transponder Capacity Agreement (Pre-Launch) dated as of March 31, 2006, as amended on February 15,
2008 and April 9, 2008 (collectively, the “Agreement”) between Intelsat and Customer, Intelsat is providing Customer with *** (***) *** transponders and up to
() *** transponders on Galaxy 18, and *** (***) *** transponder, and *** (***) *** transponder on Horizons 1, and an additional *** (***) *** Transponder
Segment on Horizons 1;

WHEREAS, Customer and Intelsat wish to amend the terms of the Agreement to extend the term of the Additional *** Transponder capacity;
AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of mutual covenants and agreements hereinafter set forth, the sufficiency and receipt of which is
hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

1. Except as specifically provided herein, all terms and provisions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.
2. Section 1.1, Description of Capacity. This Section shall be deleted and replaced with the following:

Intelsat agrees to provide to Customer and Customer agrees to accept from Intelsat, on a full time basis twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven (7) days a
week), in outerspace, for the Capacity Term (as defined here), the Customer's Transponder Capacity (defined below) meeting the “Performance
Specifications” set forth in the “Technical Appendix” attached hereto as Appendix B. For purposes of this Agreement, the “Customer’s Transponder

Capacity” or “Customer’s Transponders” shall consist of (a) *** (***) ***, *** (***** ***) ** transponders (collectively, the “*** Transponders’ and
individually, the “*** Transponder”) and up to *** (***) *** transponders as set forth in Section 1.5, below, as described in Appendix A to this Agreement

from that certain U.S. domestic satellite referred to by Intelsat as “Galaxy 18,” which is currently waiting for launch and planned to replace “Galaxy XR”
located in geostationary orbit at 123 degrees West Longitude, and (b) *** (***) ***, *** transponder (the “*** Transponder”) and (c) a *** Transponder
Segment from the *** (***) additional *** transponder as set forth in Section 1.6, below, as described in Appendix A to this Agreement from the ***

payload of that certain satellite referred to by Intelsat as “Horizons 1” at 127 degrees West Longitude. The transponders on the Satellite and the beams
in which these transponders are grouped are referred to as “Transponder(s)” and the “Beam(s),” respectively. Galaxy 18 or Horizons 1 or such other
satellite as to which Customer may at the time be using capacity hereunder, as applied in context herein, is referred to as the “Satellite.” Intelsat shall not
preempt or interrupt the provision of the Customer’s Transponder Capacity to Customer, except as specifically permitted under this Agreement.

3. Additional Transponder Capacity Term. The Capacity Term for the Additional Transponder Capacity shall be extended from ***, *** to *** (the “Additional
*** Transponder Capacity Term”).

4. Monthly Fee. The Monthly Fee for the Additional *** Transponder Capacity shall be US$***,*** per month.

5. Non-Applicable Provisions from the Agreement. Intelsat and Customer agree and acknowledge that the terms of the backup protection from the
Agreement (including, without limitation, Article 17 and any and all references to such backup protection shall not apply to the Additional *** Transponder
Capacity.

6. Except as specifically set forth in this Amendment, all terms and conditions of the amendment remain in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties hereto has duly executed and delivered this Third Amendment as of the day and year above written.

INTELSAT CORPORATION GCI COMMUNICATION CORP.
/s/ Patricia Casey /s/ Jimmy R. Sipes
Name: Patricia Casey Name: Jimmy R. Sipes

Title: Senior VP and Deputy General Counsel Title: VP Network Services & Chief Engineer
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FOURTH AMENDMENT TO THE FULL-TIME-TRANSPONDER CAPACITY AGREEMENT (PRE-LAUNCH)

This Fourth Amendment to the Full-Time Transponder Capacity Agreement (Pre-Launch) (the “First Amendment”) is made and entered into as of this 4th
day of June, 2008 by and between INTELSAT CORPORATION, formerly known as PanAmSat Corporation, a Delaware corporation (“Intelsat”), and GCI
COMMUNICATION CORP., an Alaskan corporation (“Customer”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, pursuant to that certain Full-Time Transponder Capacity Agreement (Pre-Launch) dated as of March 31, 2006, as amended on February 15,
2008, April 9, 2008, and June 4, 2008 (collectively, the “Agreement”) between Intelsat and Customer, Intelsat is providing Customer with *** (***) ***
transponders and up to *** (***) *** transponders on Galaxy 18, and *** (***) *** transponder, *** (***) *** transponder on Horizons 1, and an additional ***
(***) *** Transponder Segment on Horizons 1;

WHEREAS, Customer and Intelsat wish to amend the terms of the Agreement to exercise Customer’s *** Transponder, as defined in the Agreement;
AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of mutual covenants and agreements hereinafter set forth, the sufficiency and receipt of which is
hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

1. Except as specifically provided herein, all terms and provisions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

2. ** Transponder. Intelsat agrees to provide to Customer and Customer agrees to accept from Intelsat *** (***) *** Transponder (the “*** Transponder”)
meeting the performance specifications set forth in Appendix B attached hereto.

3. Capacity Term. The Capacity Term for the *** Transponder Capacity shall commence on ***, *** and continue until the later of (a) 23:59 Greenwich
Mean Time On the date that is *kk (***) *kk (***) ***’ OI' (***) *kk (***) ***.

4. Monthly Fee. The Monthly Fee for the *** Transponder Capacity shall be US$*** *** per month.
5. Except as specifically set forth in this Amendment, all terms and conditions of the amendment remain in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties hereto has duly executed and delivered this Third Amendment as of the day and year above written.

INTELSAT CORPORATION GClI COMMUNICATION CORP.
/s/ Patricia Casey /s/ Jimmy R. Sipes
Name: Patricia Casey Name: Jimmy R. Sipes

Title: Senior VP and Deputy General Counsel Title: VP Network Services and Chief Engineer
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FIFTH AMENDMENT TO THE FULL-TIME-TRANSPONDER CAPACITY AGREEMENT (PRE-LAUNCH)

This Fifth Amendment to the Full-Time Transponder Capacity Agreement (Pre-Launch) (the “Fifth Amendment”) is made and entered into as of this 30 t day
of September, 2008 by and between INTELSAT CORPORATION, formerly known as PanAmSat Corporation, a Delaware corporation (“Intelsat”), and GCI
COMMUNICATION CORP., an Alaskan corporation (“Customer”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, pursuant to that certain Full-Time Transponder Capacity Agreement (Pre-Launch) dated as of March 31, 2006, as amended on February 15,
2008, April 9, 2008, and June 4, 2008, (collectively, the “Agreement”) between Intelsat and Customer, Intelsat is providing Customer with *** (***) ***
transponders and *** (***) *** transponders on Galaxy 18, and *** (***) *** transponder, *** (***) *** transponder on Horizons 1, and an additional *** (***) ***
Transponder Segment on Horizons 1;

WHEREAS, Customer and Intelsat wish to amend the terms of the Agreement to extend the Capacity Term for the Additional *** Capacity;
AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of mutual covenants and agreements hereinafter set forth, the sufficiency and receipt of which is
hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

1. Except as specifically provided herein, all terms and provisions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

2. Capacity Term. The Capacity Term for the Additional *** Capacity shall continue until 23:59 Greenwich Mean Time on ***.
3. Monthly Fee. The Monthly Fee for the *** of Additional *** Capacity shall be US$***,*** per month.

4. Except as specifically set forth in this Amendment, all terms and conditions of the amendment remain in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties hereto has duly executed and delivered this Third Amendment as of the day and year above written.

INTELSAT CORPORATION GClI COMMUNICATION CORP.
/s/ Patricia Casey /s/ Jimmy R. Sipes
Name: Patricia Casey Name: Jimmy R. Sipes

Title: Senior VP and Deputy General Counsel Title: VP Network Services & Chief Engineer
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SIXTH AMENDMENT TO THE FULL-TIME-TRANSPONDER CAPACITY AGREEMENT (PRE-LAUNCH)

This Sixth Amendment to the Full-Time Transponder Capacity Agreement (Pre-Launch) (the “Sixth Amendment”) is made and entered into as of this 31st day of
October, 2008 by and between INTELSAT CORPORATION, formerly known as PanAmSat Corporation, a Delaware corporation (‘Intelsat”), and GCI
COMMUNICATION CORP., an Alaskan corporation (“Customer”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, pursuant to that certain Full-Time Transponder Capacity Agreement (Pre-Launch) dated as of March 31, 2006, as amended (collectively, the
“Agreement”) between Intelsat and Customer, Intelsat is providing Customer with *** (***) *** transponders and *** (***) *** transponders on Galaxy 18, and *** (***)
*** transponder, *** (***) *** transponder on Horizons 1, and an additional *** (***) *** Transponder Segment on Horizons 1;

WHEREAS, Customer and Intelsat wish to amend the terms of the Agreement to extend the Capacity Term for the Additional *** Capacity;
AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of mutual covenants and agreements hereinafter set forth, the sufficiency and receipt of which is hereby
acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

1. Except as specifically provided herein, all terms and provisions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.
2. Section 1.1, Description of Capacity. This Section shall be deleted and replaced with the following:

Intelsat agrees to provide to Customer and Customer agrees to accept from Intelsat, on a full time basis twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven (7) days a
week), in outerspace, for the Capacity Term (as defined here), the Customer’s Transponder Capacity (defined below) meeting the “Performance
Specifications” set forth in the “Technical Appendix” attached hereto as Appendix B. For purposes of this Agreement, the “Customer’s Transponder
Capacity” or “Customer’s Transponders” shall consist of (a) *** (***) ***, *** (***.*** ***) ** transponders (collectively, the “*** Transponders’ and
individually, the “*** Transponder”) from that certain U.S. domestic satellite referred to by Intelsat as “Galaxy 18,” located in geostationary orbit at 123
degrees West Longitude, and (b) *** (***) ***, *** transponder from the *** payload of that certain satellite referred to by Intelsat as “Horizons 1” at 127
degrees West Longitude (“*** Transponder”); and (c) *** (***) *** transponder from the *** payload of that certain satellite referred to by Intelsat as
“Horizons 1” at 127 degrees West Longitude which the Customer shall use based on the following *** (“*** Transponder”):

Capacity *** *** Capacity *** Fag
*kk *kk US$***,***
kkk _ kkk ***.*** US$***,***
kkk _ kkk *kk US$***,***
kkk _ kkk *kk US$***,***

The transponders on the Satellite and the beams in which these transponders are grouped are referred to as “Transponder(s)” and the “Beam(s),
respectively. Galaxy 18 or Horizons 1 or such other satellite as to which Customer may at the time be using capacity hereunder, as applied in context
herein, is referred to as the “Satellite.” Intelsat shall not preempt or interrupt the provision of the Customer’s Transponder Capacity to Customer, except
as specifically permitted under this Agreement.

2. Except as specifically set forth in this Amendment, all terms and conditions of the amendment remain in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties hereto has duly executed and delivered this Sixth Amendment as of the day and year above written.

INTELSAT CORPORATION GClI COMMUNICATION CORP.
/s/ Patricia Casey /s/ Jimmy R. Sipes
Name: Patricia Casey Name: Jimmy R. Sipes

Title: Senior VP and Deputy General Counsel Title: VP Network Services & Chief Engineer
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SEVENTH AMENDMENT TO THE FULL-TIME-TRANSPONDER CAPACITY AGREEMENT (PRE-LAUNCH)

This Seventh Amendment to the Full-Time Transponder Capacity Agreement (Pre-Launch) (the “Seventh Amendment”) is made and entered into as of this
6th day of November, 2008 by and between INTELSAT CORPORATION, formerly known as PanAmSat Corporation, a Delaware corporation (“Intelsat”),
and GClI COMMUNICATION CORP., an Alaskan corporation (“Customer”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, pursuant to that certain Full-Time Transponder Capacity Agreement (Pre-Launch) dated as of March 31, 2006, as amended (collectively, the
“Agreement”) between Intelsat and Customer, Intelsat is providing Customer with *** (***) *** transponders and *** (***) *** transponders on Galaxy 18, and
E(ex) *** transponder, *** (***) *** transponder on Horizons 1, and an additional *** (***) *** Transponder Segment on Horizons 1;

WHEREAS, Customer and Intelsat wish to amend the terms of the Agreement to exercise Customer’s *** Transponder, as defined in the Agreement;
AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of mutual covenants and agreements hereinafter set forth, the sufficiency and receipt of which is
hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

1. Except as specifically provided herein, all terms and provisions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

2. ** Transponder. Intelsat agrees to provide to Customer and Customer agrees to accept from Intelsat *** (***) *** Transponder (the “*** Transponder”)
meeting the performance specifications set forth in Appendix B attached hereto.

ek

3. Capacity Term. The Capacity Term for the *** Transponder Capacity shall commence on ***, *** and continue until 23:59 Greenwich Mean Time on ***,

4. Monthly Fee. The Monthly Fee for the *** Transponder Capacity shall be US$*** *** per month.
5. Except as specifically set forth in this Amendment, all terms and conditions of the amendment remain in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties hereto has duly executed and delivered this Seventh Amendment as of the day and year above written.

INTELSAT CORPORATION GClI COMMUNICATION CORP.
/s/ Patricia Casey /s/ Jimmy R. Sipes
Name: Patricia Casey Name: Jimmy R. Sipes

Title: Senior VP and Deputy General Counsel Title: VP Network Services & Chief Engineer
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EIGHTH AMENDMENT TO THE FULL-TIME-TRANSPONDER CAPACITY AGREEMENT (PRE-LAUNCH)

This Eighth Amendment to the Full-Time Transponder Capacity Agreement (Pre-Launch) (the “Eighth Amendment”) is made and entered into as of this 8th
day of June, 2009 by and between INTELSAT CORPORATION, formerly known as PanAmSat Corporation, a Delaware corporation (“Intelsat”), and GClI
COMMUNICATION CORP., an Alaskan corporation (“Customer”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, pursuant to that certain Full-Time Transponder Capacity Agreement (Pre-Launch) dated as of March 31, 2006, as amended (collectively, the
“Agreement”) between Intelsat and Customer, Intelsat is providing Customer with *** (***) 36 *** transponders and *** (***) *** transponders on Galaxy 18,
and *** (***) *** transponders on Horizons 1;

WHEREAS, Customer and Intelsat wish to amend the terms of the Agreement to exercise Customer’s option for the *** Transponder, as defined in the
Agreement;

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of mutual covenants and agreements hereinafter set forth, the sufficiency and receipt of which is
hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

1. Except as specifically provided herein, all terms and provisions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

2. ** Transponder. Intelsat agrees to provide to Customer and Customer agrees to accept from Intelsat *** (***) *** Transponder (the “*** Transponder”)
meeting the performance specifications set forth in Appendix B attached hereto.

3. Capacity Term. The Capacity Term for the *** Transponder Capacity shall commence on *** and continue until 23:59 Greenwich Mean Time on ***.
4. Monthly Fee. The Monthly Fee for the *** Transponder Capacity shall be US$***,*** per month.
5. Except as specifically set forth in this Amendment, all terms and conditions of the amendment remain in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties hereto has duly executed and delivered this Seventh Amendment as of the day and year above written.

INTELSAT CORPORATION GCI COMMUNICATION CORP.
/s/ Patricia Casey /s/ Jimmy R. Sipes
Name: Patricia Casey Name: Jimmy R. Sipes

Title: Senior VP and Deputy General Counsel Title: VP Network Services & Chief Engineer










CONFIDENTIAL
Exhibit 10.169

*** Confidential Portion has been omitted pursuant to a request for confidential treatment by the Company to, and the material has been separately
filed with, the SEC. Each omitted Confidential Portion is marked by three Asterisks.

FIFTEENTH AMENDMENT TO CONTRACT FOR ALASKA ACCESS SERVICES

This FIFTEENTH AMENDMENT TO THE CONTRACT FOR ALASKA ACCESS SERVICES (“Fifteenth Amendment”) is entered into effective as of May 5, 2009
(“Fifteenth Amendment Effective Date”), by and between GENERAL COMMUNICATION, INC. and its indirectly, wholly-owned subsidiary, GCI COMMUNICATION
CORP., both Alaska corporations (together, “GCI”) with offices located at 2550 Denali Street, Suite 1000, Anchorage, Alaska 99503-2783 and MCI
COMMUNICATIONS SERVICES, INC., d/b/a VERIZON BUSINESS SERVICES (successor-in-interest to MCI Network Services, Inc., which was formerly known
as MClI WORLDCOM Network Services (“Verizon”) with offices located at 1133 19 th Street N.W. Washington, D.C. 20036 (GCI with Verizon, collectively the
“Parties,” and individually, a “Party”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, GCI and Verizon entered into that certain Contract for Alaska Access Services dated January 1, 1993 (“Original Agreement”), as amended by
(i) the First Amendment to Contract for Alaska Access Services dated as of March 1, 1996, (ii) the Second Amendment to Contract for Alaska Access Services
dated as of January 1, 1998, (iii) the Third Amendment to Contract for Alaska Access Services dated as of March 1, 1998, (iv) the Fourth Amendment to Contract
for Alaska Access Services dated as of January 1, 1999, (v) the Fifth Amendment to Contract for Alaska Access Services dated as of August 7, 2000, (vi) the Sixth
Amendment to Contract for Alaska Access Services dated as of February 14, 2001, (vii) the Seventh Amendment to Contract for Alaska Access Services dated as
of March 8, 2001, (viii) the Eighth Amendment to Contract for Alaska Access Services dated as of July 1, 2003, (ix) the Ninth Amendment to Contract for Alaska
Access Services dated as of January 23, 2005, (x) the Tenth Amendment to Contract for Alaska Access Services dated as of May 1, 2006, (xi) the Eleventh
Amendment to Contract for Alaska Access Services dated as of January 1, 2007, (xii) the Twelfth Amendment to Contract for Alaska Access Services dated as of
December 13, 2007, (xiii) the Thirteenth Amendment to Contract for Alaska Access Services dated as of December 21, 2007, and (xiv) the Fourteenth Amendment

to Contract for Alaska Access Services dated as of May 15, 2008 (collectively, “Agreement”), which set forth the general terms and conditions under which GCI
provides certain telecommunications services to Verizon; and

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to further modify the Agreement, and also in particular as amended by the Twelfth Amendment to the Agreement, in
accordance with the terms and conditions set forth herein

AGREEMENT
NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows:
. New Definition. Section 1 DEFINITIONS of the Agreement is hereby amended to add the following new definition:
L. ***: A***to be *** Section 2.B.(16).
1. ***. As of the Effective Date, the following shall be added as a new Section 2.B.(16) in the Agreement:
(16). A.***: *** and *** for *** within *** (“***). *** shall *** and ***, *** (“***") shall *** of *** for ***__ In the event ***, ***.
***a $*** for ***. The $*** shall *** for ***. *** the $*** for the *** and/or ***.

*** ghall be ***. *** ghall *** to ***. *** ghall ***’ where *** from ***, *** may **k of the ***  *** ghal| be ***’ ***’ *RE that *** from) ***’ *** and ***, and
also ***, k.

Tk Using ***, and ***, but *** in Writing, *kk kkk gla| ***’ FRE Gt KRE G KhK o Rk ek

RAE fo RAE KAE AAE kR g0 REE fo EE o kkk

(16)B - %% Eor ***’ ***’ ***’ ***’ ***, *** 0 comments *** that ***. The **** (***) Fhk f kkk kkk it o RRE fha Rk Rk gt ap Rk (e Rk

Il

1. Section 5. TEAMING ACTIVITIES, of the Agreement (as added by the Twelfth Amendment to the Agreement) is hereby amended as
follows:
(i) Subsection A. of Section 5 is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

***’ the ***" ***’ k. (n***n)’ Tk (u***u’ “PrOjeCt” *hk G RRK o FhE oo ***’ *** gnd ***’ ***’ **k and ***,

(i) Subsections B, C and D of Section 5 are deleted in their entirety.
2. Section 6. ALLOCATION OF COSTS, is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following new Section 6, NETWORK SECURITY/COMPLIANCE, as
follows:
6. NETWORK SECURITY; LEGAL COMPLIANCE

A. Background Checks

All persons that GCI uses to perform Services that involve physical or electronic access to Verizon Business networks or facilities shall first undergo and
pass a background check to include criminal history checking, drug testing[federal law limitation?], and verification of education, employment history, Social
Security Number and legal right to work (collectively referred to as “background checks”), substantively equivalent to the background checks that Verizon
Business performs on its own employees. Requirements for background checks are available from Verizon Business upon request. By giving persons
physical or electronic access to Verizon Business networks or facilities, GCI is deemed to be certifying that such persons have successfully passed
background checks.

GClI represents and warrants that persons used by GCI to perform Services that involve physical or electronic access to Verizon Business networks or



13.

facilities have successfully passed background checks.
B. No Offshoring

Notwithstanding any other term or condition of the Agreement to the contrary, GCI represents, warrants, and covenants that no Service performed by GCI
pursuant to this Agreement shall be provided, directed, controlled, supervised, or managed from a site located outside of the United States, and that no
Confidential Information or other data relating to any such Service shall be transmitted, stored, or accessed electronically, from, at, in, or through a site
located outside of the United States.

C. Network Security

GCI has implemented and shall maintain a commercially-reasonable written information security program intended to prevent unauthorized access to or use
of GCI's network and business systems and to protect the security of information on GCl's network and business systems. GCI shall immediately notify
Verizon Business if it learns of any situation that may have resulted in the unauthorized use or disclosure of Verizon Business Confidential Information and
assist Verizon Business in investigating, assessing, and mitigating the extent and nature of the unauthorized use or disclosure. Such notice shall be
provided by e-mail simultaneously to security.issues@verizon.com and to GCI's customary point-of-contact at Verizon Business, and shall be followed-up
with notice to the contract notice addresses for Verizon Business set forth in this Agreement in accordance with the procedures specified therein.

GCI represents and warrants that GCI's arrangements with its subcontractors and interconnecting carriers with respect to transport and delivery of network-
based communications are consistent with customary practice and usage in the telecommunications industry with respect to implementing appropriate
safeguards intended to protect the security and confidentiality of the information transmitted over shared networks, and comply with all applicable laws
including without limitation the customer proprietary network information requirements under Section 222 of the Communications Act of 1934, as amended,
and the Electronic Communications Privacy Act, as amended.

D. Disposal of Equipment; Destruction of Confidential Information

GCl shall ensure that disposal of Confidential Information and of electronic media (e.g., hard disks, thumb-drives) on which Confidential Information is or has
been stored or maintained is accomplished in a manner that either (a) destroys the media on which such information is or was stored or maintained and
thereby makes recovery of such information impossible, or (b) removes such information from the media, or renders such information irretrievable, such that
data recovery is not possible.

E. Compliance With Privacy Laws

GCI understands and acknowledges that information it may obtain from Verizon Business or a Verizon Business Customer in connection with GCI's
provision of the Services may be covered by one or more legal regimes intended to address privacy, security, identity theft, or other such issues, including
without limitation California Civil Code §1798.82 and similar state laws; the Fair and Accurate Credit Transactions Act of 2003, Public Law 108-159;
customer proprietary network information (CPNI) requirements under Section 222 of the Communications Act of 1934; and the Electronic Communications
Privacy Act. GCI shall comply in full with all such legal requirements. In addition, GCI shall treat all information obtained from Verizon Business or a
Verizon Business Customer as Verizon Business Confidential Information, in accordance with this Agreement.

F. Verizon Supplier Code of Conduct
GCl agrees to comply with Verizon's Supplier Code of Conduct located at http://responsibility.verizon.com/our-principles/ethics.htm which may be updated

from time to time, or with GCI's own code of conduct to the extent it is substantially similar in scope and nature to Verizon’s. References to Supplier in the
Supplier Code of Conduct shall mean GCI.

3. Section 9. SUBCONTRACT, of the Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following new section 9:
9. SUBCONTRACT.

GCI agrees to act as a subcontractor to Verizon for the Networx Project and to provision telecommunications services in support of Verizon’s Networx
telecommunications service requirements in Alaska, if and when requested by Verizon in writing, and all in accordance with and subject to the Agreement,
and in particular as amended by the Twelfth Amendment and all Exhibits thereto. GCI also agrees to the incorporation of any additional necessary or
appropriate “flow-down” clauses and other provisions from the prime contract between Verizon and Customer as Verizon deems necessary in its sole
discretion to enable it to comply with its prime contract obligations and to provide Verizon the required control over GCI's support of the Project, provided
that Verizon gives adequate and reasonable notice of such provisions to GCI, and that if such provisions require significant additional services, reasonable
additional compensation will be provided. GCI will represent the best interests of Verizon when conducting business with the Local Exchange Carriers and
other parties necessary to ensure successful results in ordering Services.

4. Section 13 TERMINATION OF TEAMING ACTIVITIES is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following new Section 13:

EARLY TERMINATION OF SERVICE ORDER SUPPORTING GOVERNMENT CONTRACT. If a Service Order is entered into by Verizon and GCI in
support of a government contract (which fact, for the convenience of the Parties may be noted on the Service Order), and the government terminates its
contract with Verizon, Verizon may terminate the Service Order without penalty or payment of any early termination fees that might otherwise apply
under this Agreement upon ten (10) days notice to GCI. Verizon will pay for Services up to the date of termination.

V. Effect of Amendment. All other terms and conditions of the Agreement not expressly modified by this Fifteenth Amendment shall remain in full
force and effect. The Parties hereby affirm and agree such terms remain binding.

V. Further Assurances. The Parties shall cooperate in good faith, and enter into such other instruments and take such actions, as may be necessary
or desirable, to fully implement the intent of this Fifteenth Amendment.

Vi. Counterparts; Signatures. This Fifteenth Amendment may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and both of
which shall constitute one and the same instrument. When signed by each Party’s authorized representative, a facsimile copy of this Fifteenth Amendment
shall have the same force and effect as one bearing an original signature.

Vil. Entire Agreement. This Fifteenth Amendment, together with the Agreement, including exhibits hereto and other documents incorporated by
reference, contains the complete agreement of the Parties with regard to the subject matter herein and supersedes and replaces all other prior contracts




and representations concerning its subject matter. In the event of a conflict between the terms of this Fifteenth Amendment and the Agreement, the terms
of this Fifteenth Amendment shall control. Any further amendments to the Agreement must be in writing and signed by authorized representatives of both
Parties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto each acting with proper authority have executed this Fifteenth Amendment as of the Fifteenth Amendment Effective
Date.
MCI COMMUNICATIONS SERVICES, INC.

By: /s/ Peter Reynolds

Printed Name: Peter Reynolds

Title:

GCI COMMUNICATION CORP.

By: /s/ Richard Westlund
Printed Name: Richard Westlund
Title: Senior Vice President & General Manager, Network Access Services

GENERAL COMMUNICATION, INC.

By: /s/ Richard Westlund
Printed Name: Richard Westlund
Title: Senior Vice President & General Manager, Network Access Services










Exhibit 18.1

November 5, 2009

Board of Directors of General Communication, Inc. and GClI, Inc.
2550 Denali St, Suite 1000
Anchorage, AK 99503-2751

Dear Directors:

We are providing this letter solely for inclusion as an exhibit to General Communication, Inc.’s and GClI, Inc.’s (collectively the “Company”) Form 10-Q filing
pursuant to ltem 601 of Regulation S-K.

As stated in Note 1 to the unaudited consolidated financial statements included in the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended
September 30, 2009, the Company changed the date of its annual goodwill impairment test from December 31 to October 31. Note 1 also states management’s
belief that the newly adopted accounting principle is preferable in the circumstances because the change allows the Company to complete its annual goodwill
impairment testing in advance of its year-end closing activities.

With regard to the aforementioned accounting change, it should be understood that authoritative criteria have not been established for evaluating the preferability
of one acceptable method of accounting over another acceptable method and, in expressing our concurrence below, we have relied on management’s business
planning and judgment and on management'’s determination that this change in accounting principle is preferable.

Based on our reading of management’s stated reasons and justification for this change in accounting principle as disclosed in the Form 10-Q, and our discussions
with management as to their judgment about the relevant business planning factors relating to the change, we concur with management that the newly adopted
method of accounting is preferable in the Company’s circumstances.

We have not audited any consolidated financial statements of the Company as of any date or for any period.

Very truly yours,

/s GRANT THORNTON LLP










Exhibit 31.1

SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION

I, Ronald A. Duncan, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of General Communication, Inc. for the period ended September 30, 2009;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant's other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and
have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of
the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant's other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and




SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

/s/ Ronald A. Duncan

Date: November 6, 2009 Ronald A. Duncan
President and Director










Exhibit 31.2

SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION

I, John M. Lowber, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of General Communication, Inc. for the period ended September 30, 2009;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant's other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and
have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of
the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant's other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and




SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

/s/ John M. Lowber

Date: November 6, 2009 John M. Lowber
Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and Treasurer










Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
In connection with the Quarterly Report of General Communication, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2009 as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Ronald A. Duncan, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18
U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and result of operations of the Company.

Date: November 6, 2009 /s/ Ronald A. Duncan

Ronald A. Duncan
Chief Executive Officer
General Communication, Inc.










Exhibit 32.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of General Communication, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2009 as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, John M. Lowber, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §
1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and result of operations of the Company.
Date: November 6, 2009 /s/ John M. Lowber

John M. Lowber

Chief Financial Officer
General Communication, Inc.







